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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Good morning. I'm

          3  Kathryn Freed, I'm the Chairperson of the Committee

          4  on Contracts. I want to recognize my colleagues. To

          5  my immediate left is Council Member Bill Perkins,

          6  who put in the resolution to have this hearing on

          7  emergency contracts, and to his left is Council

          8  Member Eva Moskowitz, they are both from Manhattan.

          9  And to my left is Angel Rodriguez, who is a Council

         10  member from Brooklyn. And we will be joined by other

         11  Council members periodically, because there are

         12  several hearings going on today.

         13                 Today this Committee is discussion

         14  Reso 2088, calling upon the appropriate committee of

         15  the Council, i.e. Contracts, to conduct an oversight

         16  hearing in relation to the issuance of emergency

         17  contracts by the City involving the clean-up efforts

         18  at the World Trade Center.

         19                 As a result of the September 11th

         20  terrorist attack on the World Trade Center, the City

         21  has issued a number of emergency contracts for the

         22  clean-up of the hundreds of thousands of tons of

         23  rubble and debris from the site.

         24                 The unprecedented attacks on the City

         25  created an immediate need for goods and services
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          2  that cannot be obtained through normal procurement

          3  practices.

          4                 Accordingly, this City suspended

          5  normal competitive bidding rules, and emergency

          6  contracts were issued to address the monumental

          7  clean-up effort and other related necessary

          8  services.

          9                 According to the media, this City has

         10  already awarded approximately $1 billion in

         11  emergency contracts to remove all rubble and debris.

         12                 In addition, several City agencies

         13  have entered into emergency contracts on a wide

         14  variety of goods and services needed to address the

         15  events of September 11th.

         16                 The purpose of this hearing is to

         17  discuss such issues as the terms and length of these

         18  emergency contracts, to whom were the contracts

         19  awarded, and questions surrounding indemnification.

         20                 In addition, due to the lack of

         21  public notice and the lack of competitiveness

         22  usually associated with emergency contracts, it is

         23  in the best interest of the public to now discuss

         24  this important issue and what, if any, efforts the

         25  City is making to ensure adequate notice and equal
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          2  access to all interested in participating in

          3  clean-up and rebuilding efforts.

          4                 And just on a personal note, many of

          5  you probably know, I not only represent the district

          6  that the trade center is in, but I also live about

          7  three and half to four blocks north of it, and I get

          8  to view on a daily basis the clean-up efforts, in

          9  fact most of the trucks go right by my windows, and

         10  so I'm also intimately aware of the impact a lot of

         11  these contracts are having on the area.

         12                 Anyway, before we hear testimony, let

         13  me remind you that it is the practice of this

         14  Committee to swear in all witnesses.

         15                 We've also been joined by Council

         16  Member Quinn.

         17                 Now, before I swear in our first

         18  witness, I want to turn the mic over to Council

         19  Member Perkins for any remarks he would care to

         20  make.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         22  very much, Kathryn, for convening this meeting in

         23  response to the resolution that I put in. Clearly,

         24  there are some major, major issues and major

         25  concerns of a contracting nature that have to come
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          2  to light, and we're hopeful that many of those

          3  issues will not only come to light, but will lead us

          4  to some resolution of some of those issues.

          5                 You know, we have some civil servants

          6  that are working down there and have been doing an

          7  excellent job under the supervision of the

          8  Department of Design and Construction, and have been

          9  rather cost effective in the way they have been

         10  doing their job, and questions are coming up as to

         11  why, if you have a good thing, would you want to

         12  change it. And we have other contractors in our City

         13  that are based in our City who are concerned about

         14  these opportunities being made available to them,

         15  since they are partners of this City and concerned

         16  that possibly some of these contracts will be given

         17  to others.

         18                 We have workers in our City who would

         19  do well if they could get some of the job

         20  opportunities that are being available down there.

         21  So, there are many issues of that nature that are of

         22  great concern, and essentially what we're trying to

         23  do is make sure that we have equal access, we have

         24  public notice and we have an open process, as we are

         25  involved in this contracting at the World Trade

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  Center.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 And just as a final quick note: You

          7  know, the City had to contend with unprecedented

          8  devastation right after the attack on the Trade

          9  Center and certainly during the search and rescue

         10  method, when we were in that phase, the necessity

         11  for emergency contracts was obvious, and the

         12  question is now, three months down the road, where

         13  are we and when do we start having the competitive

         14  bidding process, and just how long will the

         15  emergency contracts continue.

         16                 I'm pleased to announce that the

         17  first witness will be the Borough President of

         18  Manhattan, C. Virginia Fields.

         19                 Welcome.

         20                 Were there copies of your testimony?

         21                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: I'm sorry.

         22  Good morning. Madam Chair, because of a couple of

         23  important changes made, I've asked that they submit

         24  it to you later.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.
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          2                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: But you

          3  will receive copies of it.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. Before you

          6  start, if you would raise your right hand. Sorry, we

          7  do this to everybody.

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: It's okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Do you swear to

         10  tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         11  truth?

         12                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: I do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         14                 And, please state your name, again,

         15  for the record, and proceed.

         16                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: C. Virginia

         17  Fields, Manhattan Borough President.

         18                 This is anew, I don't think I've ever

         19  done this, but it's great. Thank you.

         20                 Madam Chair and members of the

         21  Committee, first of all, let me commend you for

         22  holding a hearing on such a timely issue, one that

         23  is obviously of great concern to all of us, and I

         24  want to thank Council Member Perkins for introducing

         25  the legislation and having attended several meetings
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          2  with him now, I know of his interest in the work

          3  that he's been doing on this matter.

          4                 And I want to say to you, also by way

          5  of just some comments, Councilwoman Freed, you have

          6  just been outstanding in terms of your leadership,

          7  because as you said, it is your district, but also

          8  on behalf of all of the City.

          9                 Obviously, since the very tragic

         10  occurrence of September 11th, we have all come to

         11  know something about pieces of what has happened

         12  with the contracts, and part of this hearing today I

         13  hope will be able to clarify exactly what the

         14  situation is.

         15                 We understand that four emergency

         16  contracts were issued for World Trade Center

         17  clean-up in an amount totalling close to $1 billion,

         18  and indeed these workers from the four firms have

         19  been working at Ground Zero since the week of the

         20  attack, and to them we are all very, very grateful.

         21  They have been working under the supervision of the

         22  Department of Design and Construction, a City

         23  agency, which has managed to be oversight,

         24  monitoring and accountability.

         25                 Obviously, the immediately aftermath
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          2  of September 11th emergency contracts were necessary

          3  since time did not permit for the normal processes

          4  and procedures to occur. So the rules were suspended

          5  by Executive Order at the State level and the

          6  procurement rules were suspended at the City level.

          7                 But, again, given the enormity of the

          8  circumstances, I certainly believe that these

          9  actions were necessary and clearly in order. But now

         10  that we're no longer in a crisis mode, as you

         11  stated, Madam Chair, I do question the need to

         12  further suspend or ignore rules, regulations, and

         13  policies.

         14                 I do not think it is warranted, nor

         15  should it be accepted by any of us. We all know that

         16  some recent reports, including ones on the media

         17  today reveal that the City is perhaps close to

         18  reaching an agreement with the Bechtel group, which

         19  is one of the world's largest construction companies

         20  for the day-to-day management of Ground Zero.

         21                 While the specific details of that

         22  arrangement unfortunately have not been made

         23  available, I think that still there are a number of

         24  issues that have come to the forefront of which I

         25  find terribly troubling and would just like to
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          2  mention briefly today.

          3                 First, if the reports are accurate,

          4  the first question is how was the Bechtel Company

          5  selected? Was the contract competitively bid? What

          6  is the value of the contract? And as I previously

          7  mentioned, emergency contracts were warranted, but

          8  it's now time for the City to provide assurances

          9  that sufficient measures have been taken to give all

         10  contractors and subcontractors ample notice and

         11  equal access to participate and compete for the work

         12  involved in the entire clean-up and rebuilding

         13  effort. Of particular importance is certainly the

         14  inclusion of women and minority contractors.

         15                 Second, it has been reported that if

         16  this contract moves forward as being discussed, that

         17  many of the local jobs, which certainly are union

         18  jobs, may be lost, if not guaranteed under any new

         19  contract.

         20                 This would mean to hundreds of

         21  workers who are now on the site, as Council Member

         22  Perkins pointed out, at the World Trade Center,

         23  would possibly be out and indeed they have contacted

         24  many of our offices worried about job security.

         25                 Any possibility that this could
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          2  occur, certainly would not be tolerated.

          3                 Third, although no specific dollar

          4  amount has been made available, it is estimated that

          5  the next contract could yield millions, if not

          6  billions of dollars in fees. Thus, the clean-up

          7  effort is reported to be evenly divided so far among

          8  the four initial contractors that employ New York

          9  City union workers and is overseen by the Department

         10  of Design and Construction engineers, a City agency,

         11  this important role would be lost, and I believe

         12  that these are important practices to be continued

         13  on both fronts.

         14                 So, in sum, I say that certainly

         15  while September 11th brought tremendous pain to our

         16  City and our economy, it is critical now that as we

         17  move to rebuild, that we not only look at how we

         18  rebuild lives of people through the various human

         19  and social services support that we are providing,

         20  but that we also look at the process of contracts,

         21  to make certain that it is an open process in

         22  accordance with our City's Procurement Policy Board

         23  rules, because as public officials, we can better

         24  assure that opportunities, such as opportunities for

         25  joint ventures, for construction management, for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  laborers, and the full myriad of job opportunities

          3  that exist are available to more than simply a few.

          4                 This would ensure a fairer and

          5  equitable process that otherwise might be lost. So,

          6  I call upon the City Council, certainly the Contract

          7  Committee, to take a leadership role in this and

          8  just to ensure that all of those things we have all

          9  worked for so long, rules, practices, processes, are

         10  in place, we're no longer in a crisis mode, and

         11  ultimately whatever comes out, it is something that

         12  we can guarantee protection and opportunity.

         13                 With that, I certainly do wish you a

         14  very successful hearing, and I will look forward to

         15  the outcome of your deliberations today.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 Let me see if there are any questions

         19  from my colleagues?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         21  to express my appreciation to you for your

         22  attendance and involvement in this issue.

         23                 I know that you've got a very busy

         24  schedule and carved out some time to be able to

         25  participate and to contribute, so I just want to
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          2  again express my appreciation to you and your staff

          3  for the guidance and support that they've given in

          4  this.

          5                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Council Member

          7  Moskowitz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair.

         10                 And thank you, Borough President, for

         11  being here today.

         12                 This is not directly on point,

         13  vis-a-vis the contracting, but I do have a concern

         14  about the structure that Governor Pataki has set up,

         15  and your presence on that Committee or lack thereof,

         16  because the contracting issue is one of the issues

         17  that could be raised.

         18                 Can you tell me anything about -- I

         19  mean, it seems that the Borough President should be

         20  involved in that, and I was very disappointed to see

         21  that you were not.

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: I could not

         23  agree with you more.

         24                 As you know, the Governor established

         25  this authority board as a subsidiary of the State
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          2  Development Corporation, which gave the Governor and

          3  the Mayor the right to make the appointment, and I

          4  do believe if not for a tremendous amount of calls

          5  and noise from my office, we probably would not even

          6  see two other people on that committee.

          7                 That is how it was structured. I

          8  think that it was a mistake. I do believe that

          9  elected officials' voices should be there as a part

         10  of the policy, making decisions, and certainly as

         11  the Executive of the Borough in which this horrific

         12  tragedy occurred, should have been on the committee.

         13                 But having said that, I do think that

         14  it is important, and I certainly will continue to do

         15  tremendous amount of oversight, in terms of any

         16  actions that are proposed to be taken by the

         17  Committee, because in addition to contracts, it has

         18  been stated, and I await actually information from

         19  the Committee in terms of exactly what they will be

         20  doing, but it has been stated that there is an

         21  interest to expedite processes of programs by

         22  suspending further rules of public review, some of

         23  the environmental rules that we have all worked very

         24  hard in terms of establishing, and that cannot be,

         25  because, again, we're no longer in a crisis mode,
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          2  and we have to put back in place, or keep in place,

          3  those things of which we have all worked so hard

          4  for.

          5                 So, I look to work with the members

          6  of the Committee, I look certainly to make input

          7  into that process, and certainly will be looking

          8  specifically at issues around contracts, rules,

          9  regulations, and other laws that I know are

         10  important to any rebuilding effort, but the

         11  magnitude of this one cannot be overlooked by any of

         12  us, and I certainly do not intend to overlook it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: In fact, let me

         14  just follow up on that, because as you know, I share

         15  your frustration with the lack of input from, you

         16  know, not only local elected officials, and

         17  certainly the surrounding community, not only one

         18  person on there, but -- and as you pointed out, the

         19  problem with potential of suspending environmental

         20  impacts, when in the community that's already been

         21  massively impacted, both residences, businesses and,

         22  you know, anyone who is working and students and

         23  people's who headquarters, businesses are down here,

         24  have not had a lot of input, but we've had a lot of

         25  the impact, especially from the environmental
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          2  questions, and what's going on, and some of the

          3  frustration with the way the contracts haven't

          4  evolved, and even the fact that in the time of

          5  potential great economic problems with the City, the

          6  fact that more City firms aren't being involved, and

          7  aren't, you know, being given a bidding process,

          8  when it would seem that logically we would want to

          9  involve more and more businesses and employ more and

         10  more people actually from the City who have been

         11  impacted by this.

         12                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Again, I

         13  think it was shortsighted, but we will move forward

         14  and we will certainly do what we must do and need to

         15  do to ensure that this is an open process and it is

         16  certainly a good beginning looking at the contracts,

         17  and there are so many other assets to this, of which

         18  I would certainly be encouraging the City Council as

         19  we move forward to do oversight, to do monitoring,

         20  so that we can all be as accountable as we must.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Council Member

         22  Perkins.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me just

         24  ask one sort of follow-up question to what my

         25  colleague Eva Moskowitz laid on the table, because

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  her concern is quite relevant to this hearing in

          3  this respect, that there is a thought that whoever

          4  gets that oversight contract, Bechtel or whoever,

          5  that that contract may not be signed with the City,

          6  instead that contract would be signed with the Port

          7  Authority, and, therefore, probably supervised by

          8  the Lower Manhattan Redevelopment Commission or

          9  whatever it's called.

         10                 So, there is a suspicion that that

         11  might happen, which then has implications for what

         12  type of oversight we can do through this City

         13  Council, through this City government, and I'm

         14  wondering if you have any thoughts in that regard,

         15  because the authority that's been created will

         16  supersede all rules, regulations, zoning laws, et

         17  cetera, that we have on record that we could impose

         18  through the City government.

         19                 Do you have any thoughts about where

         20  you think the contract should be signed, with the

         21  City or with the Port Authority?

         22                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Well, of

         23  course my preference is with the City. There's no

         24  question about that.

         25                 But I think what we really should do
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          2  at this point, and I think that the Governor, the

          3  Mayor and the Board has an obligation in terms of

          4  responding, is to set forth exactly what is this

          5  Board going to do, because it has led to far too

          6  much speculation, just as you mention, just as, you

          7  know, we've been talking about. So, we need to

          8  demand and very quickly get, okay, what is going to

          9  be the purview and the jurisdiction of this Board,

         10  to answer those questions, and if it is determined

         11  that it will be a Port of Authority contract, if you

         12  will, to still use the abilities that exist at

         13  whatever level they exist, to influence how that is

         14  still shaped.

         15                 I'd say, I mean these are public

         16  issues, these are public dollars, these are not

         17  private concerns of anyone, and I think to the

         18  extent that oversight hearings and monitoring can

         19  keep these issues in the forefront, and keep a focus

         20  on it, so whether it is under the Port Authority or

         21  the City, the same kind of input, the same kind of

         22  accountability, the same kid of expanded

         23  opportunities we are talking about, should exist

         24  under the Port Authority, as well as under the City.

         25                 So, it's the unknown that I'm
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          2  reaching for to become the known, and then we can

          3  better decide what specific steps must be taken by

          4  all of us.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Any more

          9  questions?

         10                 All right, thank you very much,

         11  Manhattan Borough President.

         12                 The next witness will be Frank

         13  McArdle, from the General Contractors Association.

         14                 As we're waiting while we get the

         15  handout. Thank you.

         16                 Okay, welcome. If you could raise

         17  your right hand, please.

         18                 Do you swear to tell the whole truth

         19  and nothing but the truth?

         20                 MR. McARDLE: I do, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         22                 And state your name and your position

         23  for the record, and please proceed.

         24                 MR. McARDLE: Yes. My name is Frank

         25  McArdle. I am the Managing Director of the General
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          2  Contractors Association. The General Contractors

          3  Association represents the heavy construction

          4  industry active in New York City, and I'm here to

          5  talk to you today about one aspect of emergency

          6  contracting that is particularly important, and

          7  important in the context of Ground Zero.

          8                 But I want to begin by thanking you

          9  for the opportunity to talk, and I want to begin

         10  also by commending to you the work that DDC and Port

         11  Authority staff have done at Ground Zero.

         12                 I've been down there, certainly for

         13  the first two months of it I was down there every

         14  day, for 12 or 14 hours, working alongside one

         15  particular construction manager, but also attending

         16  all the meetings and watching the DDC staff work,

         17  their leadership, the leadership of Ken Holden and

         18  Mike Burton and all of the teams that DDC brought

         19  has been superb, and it's been a team that's been

         20  built not only with DDC personnel, but with Port

         21  Authority people, and this effort, it's almost a

         22  public/private partnership, has really worked very

         23  well.

         24                 There's one issue, however, that I do

         25  want to talk to you about today, and that's the
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          2  issue of indemnification and protection in emergency

          3  contracting, because for the first time, as in any

          4  time that I can recall, the City has encountered

          5  something in its response at Ground Zero that it

          6  represents unknown emergencies. We can expect to

          7  have many more of these in the future.

          8                 When the contractors rushed, as so

          9  many other people did to Ground Zero on September

         10  11th, they did so knowing that their help was

         11  needed, but not knowing what they would encounter.

         12  And in the time since they have been there

         13  professionally, and on a paid basis, this unknown

         14  continues.

         15                 They are presuming, as I know the

         16  City is, that the work that they do is work that is

         17  difficult but not hazardous, that the environment in

         18  which they work is in fact a safe environment, safe

         19  for the workforce, safe for those around. We watch

         20  carefully the reports that are produced by those who

         21  are monitoring air quality, but we know that we can

         22  encounter many unknowns. In fact, for the first

         23  weeks that there was so much unknown about the site.

         24                 Right now, the fact that we had so

         25  many unknowns means that there are no written

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  contracts between the parties at this point, that

          3  the relationship between the DDC and the four

          4  construction managers at the site has not yet been

          5  put into writing, because the City is not able to

          6  develop written contract language that adequately

          7  addresses the issue of liability in a way that's

          8  satisfactory to the four construction managers.

          9                 It's a major problem, because the

         10  construction managers, without written contracts

         11  with the City have been unable to provide written

         12  contracts to the subcontractors who work for them.

         13                 The issue is a simple one, who is

         14  liable for what, having made this response.

         15                 The contractors believe that they

         16  have been called much in need, as the City was, to

         17  do the work at that site that the City needed to do

         18  first a rescue and then a recovery effort.

         19                 They believe that in doing that work,

         20  they should not be exposed to lawsuits from people

         21  who have been damaged. The City is unable to give

         22  them that assurance at this point in writing. The

         23  City has tried to find insurance to cover these

         24  risks and it has not been able to do so. And this is

         25  of great concern to the contractors, it's an issue
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          2  that has to be dealt with.

          3                 We are seeking support from you, as

          4  we go to Washington, to see that the federal

          5  government assumes this responsibility for these

          6  emergencies, because if the federal government does

          7  not assume this responsibility, then it will rest

          8  with a government like the City or the State who

          9  have called these contractors in.

         10                 We are not saying that people who

         11  have been damaged should not get relief. If there

         12  has been damage, there should be recompense. The

         13  federal government has recognized that in providing

         14  the insurance fund that they have for those killed

         15  on the day of the event. But that fund does not

         16  cover any damage that occurs subsequently, and it

         17  may be that people to obtain relief will turn to the

         18  courts.

         19                 If they do turn to the courts, the

         20  question is to whom do they turn, and at this point

         21  their only recourse might be to the City, or to the

         22  Port Authority, or to the contractors.

         23                 This was wrong. This was an assault

         24  upon America.

         25                 In particular, we do not believe that
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          2  any recompense should come at the expense of the

          3  contractors who have come to this site to clean up

          4  and to help the recovery effort, because if it does,

          5  then contractors will not come back again.

          6                 No contractor who watches his

          7  colleagues be impoverished is going to rush in

          8  again, as we have rushed in this time, because we

          9  simply will not have the resources or the will to

         10  commit ourselves to that level of destitution that

         11  could be there.

         12                 Now, the question for us is not a

         13  question of being liable, as much as it is a

         14  question of defense.

         15                 We will be asked to defend every

         16  claim, how ever frivolous, how ever not germane to

         17  the actions of the contractor. At this point there

         18  is no protection for the contractors against such

         19  lawsuits, and there is a substantial concern that

         20  there could be thousands of these lawsuits involving

         21  the contractors at the site. If each of those

         22  lawsuits were to cost each of the contractors down

         23  there $1,000 to get dismissal, a very low price, I'm

         24  told, it would cost, because there are roughly 20

         25  contractors down at the site, substantial amounts of
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          2  money to dismiss each case. Quickly, this could be

          3  the millions, not in the thousands, and next time no

          4  one will respond.

          5                 I urge you to work with us to get

          6  this problem solved, because when the City has an

          7  emergency again, where it cannot tell people what

          8  are the risks of response, they must be in a

          9  position to protect those people so they can make

         10  their best effort to recover people.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 As you said, you point out something

         15  that may be a real problem certainly today for the

         16  contractors, but tomorrow for the City.

         17                 You know, the contracting industry,

         18  and construction industry responded marvelously to,

         19  you know, as I said, the kind of utter devastation

         20  and something that no one has ever really

         21  experienced before, and it's appalling really that

         22  they were even -- you know, the fact that anyone had

         23  a contractual relationship with the City was

         24  excluded from, you know, indemnification, at first

         25  blush seems a rather foolish, to put it lightly,
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          2  thing to do, because, you know, anyone who's been at

          3  the site or near the site knows just how dangerous

          4  it is, I probably attended dozens and dozens of

          5  hearings and forums and conditions there, and

          6  everything from the question of the exposure to

          7  various and sundry toxins to just the conditions at

          8  the site itself. As you said, no one knows what's

          9  going to happen, no one knows what the exposures

         10  are, the fact that it's literally just dangerous at

         11  the site, with the debris itself is sharp, and is

         12  just, you know.  And the possibility of lawsuits

         13  coming out of this is obvious, and it's, as I said,

         14  it's just foolhardy for us to, first, not to in some

         15  way say thank you to the people who have rushed in

         16  to try and do the work, but even more so than that,

         17  the idea that they could be risking potential

         18  bankruptcy almost in the longrun, and the fact that

         19  if we ever have another emergency in the City, who's

         20  going to rush in if all they witnessed is those very

         21  people who rushed in to do the right thing were then

         22  abandoned by the government.

         23                 MR. McARDLE: This has truly been an

         24  emergency. I mean, the four construction managers

         25  who are there, and the subcontractors that are
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          2  supporting them, have worked 24/7 --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Literally.

          4                 MR. McARDLE: All but for a day and a

          5  half since this began. They took one day off,

          6  November 11th, because it was Veteran's Day, and

          7  they took half a day off on the day that the Mayor

          8  had the memorial on Church Street. That's the only

          9  time they've had off.

         10                 That means great progress has been

         11  made because each week you, in essence, work the

         12  equivalent of a month, you work 21 eight-hour shifts

         13  a week, but it's meant that you put a lot of

         14  resources there, you've had to have those resources

         15  to make it work.

         16                 I've been there quite a bit and it's

         17  a process that brings all New Yorkers into it, the

         18  workforce itself is an extraordinarily integrated

         19  workforce, from my observations on the site. I don't

         20  have numbers, but I do, I see the faces, I know

         21  who's there. I know particularly in Tully quadrant,

         22  where I spend most of my time, the people who are

         23  directing the trucks, that haul the debris away,

         24  there are six or seven women working on each shift,

         25  which is a large percentage of the workforce,
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          2  they're directing the trucks, the truckers

          3  themselves, a well integrated workforce, and they're

          4  all exposed.

          5                 And it may be that some of those

          6  exposures, if they are real, don't show up for 20

          7  years. We know that 20 years is the time when you

          8  start seeing the effects of asbestos exposure. And

          9  in fact, no one at this point is assured who will

         10  respond in 20 years, who will be there to respond in

         11  20 years. It's a real question.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: The companies who

         13  were the construction contractors who are there now,

         14  do they have any assurance, or any idea how long it

         15  will last, how long the contracts will last? Do they

         16  have any basis?

         17                 MR. McARDLE: Well, they are there on

         18  an emergency engagement, I've called -- since they

         19  don't have a written contract, it's called an

         20  engagement. They are making extraordinary progress

         21  in removing debris. And I think it's very clear from

         22  the comments of the Mayor and the like, that the

         23  construction managers who are there, and there are

         24  three now working, the fourth, Turner, is pretty

         25  much finished with their effort, which was the
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          2  removal of Building 7, and the debris from Building

          3  7, will be there until the bottom is reached, as it

          4  were, until the areas are excavated down to, as far

          5  down as they wish to go.

          6                 That could be done in May, okay, at

          7  this point. At the pace they are going, it might

          8  even be faster.

          9                 The demolition has gone very quickly

         10  in the area above grade. They are now into the area

         11  where they are using specialty contractors to do the

         12  dewatering and stall the tie-backing, which is

         13  pacing the work now.

         14                 And the amount of work that actually

         15  is done by people is very small, so much of this is

         16  now done by machine, you know, and people kind of

         17  expanding their capacities that way.

         18                 But then the question comes, what do

         19  you do for the recovery. What do you do when you go

         20  beyond the emergency circumstance and the debris

         21  removal into the recovery, and that's not an issue

         22  anybody has addressed yet, or really planned for.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Obviously, that's

         24  one of the reasons we're holding this, because we

         25  are trying to get a handful on when we'll get back

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  to the -- is it a normal bidding process? Are we

          3  talking --

          4                 MR. McARDLE: Well, at this point the

          5  contractors are working on a time and material

          6  basis, and they are doing so because it is so hard

          7  to actually bid the kind of work they are doing.

          8                 It's not just a question you've

          9  asked, it's a question that FEMA has asked.  They

         10  have done some bidding on the demolition work, on

         11  the specialty demolition work on Buildings 5 and 6,

         12  and those were bid, but they, again --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I guess then the

         14  question is, how are the payments being made? Is

         15  this strictly time -- because we're concerned about,

         16  you know, in the same way with some of the

         17  subcontractors, we've heard there may have been some

         18  problems with them, how they were chosen, are they

         19  getting paid, how are the major contractors getting

         20  paid?

         21                 MR. McARDLE: Well, there are four

         22  construction managers on the site, each of them

         23  having an area to work in. As I said, Turner had the

         24  responsibility for removing Building 7, that's done,

         25  Building 7's debris has gone. Every one --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I'm sorry, just to

          3  ask, did they also have the contractor doing under

          4  7, because they're actually doing some excavation

          5  and I know under 7 was with --

          6                 MR. McARDLE: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: There was a number

          8  of problematic things.

          9                 MR. McARDLE: Well, as you may know,

         10  all of Building 7 went to a special investigation

         11  location because of the problematic things in 7.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay. I know I

         13  watched it come down, I watched it out my kitchen

         14  window.

         15                 MR. McARDLE: But in fact the work

         16  that's being done in the site area now is work being

         17  done to prepare the truck tunnels for use as access

         18  into the site if that's useful, because that's where

         19  the truck tunnels went. And they are doing utility

         20  work adjacent to that site, so they get a

         21  combination of work being done in there. You can see

         22  it from your window, that's what you're seeing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         24                 MR. McARDLE: But the contractors are

         25  paid on a time and material basis, everything is
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          2  recorded, everyone signs in, everyone has to sign

          3  out. If you don't sign out you don't get paid, et

          4  cetera, et cetera.

          5                 And, again, all of this is being

          6  supervised by City people, and the people that the

          7  City have engaged to extend the City personnel to

          8  undertake the work one way or another.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, I know my

         10  colleagues have questions.

         11                 Council Member Perkins.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         13  very much for your testimony.

         14                 Indemnification is your issue and you

         15  feel that the answer is for some sort of federal

         16  involvement?

         17                 MR. McARDLE: I believe that in a

         18  circumstance like this, where you have an attack

         19  upon the nation, or quite frankly, where you have

         20  any national disaster that requires a response in

         21  unknown circumstances, which is what we're talking

         22  about, the federal government should provide an

         23  indemnification to whatever local government acts,

         24  and to whatever contractors act on behalf of the

         25  nation.
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          2                 We had the great fortune not enjoyed

          3  by many other cities, to have a city that could

          4  respond. In most disasters, FEMA comes in with their

          5  own personnel, their own contractors and just takes

          6  over. That's what they did in South Florida. That's

          7  what they do most places. Here they had the City of

          8  New York, they had an agency in DDC that had the

          9  leadership, Ken Holden, Mike Burton and the people

         10  at DDC, to get this process underway in support of

         11  the Police and Fire. Very few other cities would

         12  have had the structure to do this.

         13                 And, yet, by doing that, by not

         14  sitting back and letting FEMA do it, the City of New

         15  York and the contractors its engaged take on a huge

         16  responsibility, but also expose themselves to

         17  lawsuits that people seeking recompense file for

         18  their damages. Nothing we have done since, you know,

         19  September 11th, has in fact been in any way intended

         20  to do anything other than to facilitate the removal

         21  of debris and the recovery of people's loved ones.

         22  And the City shouldn't be exposed, and its

         23  contractors shouldn't be exposed to lawsuits. It's

         24  just a huge cost just to defend them, let alone to

         25  have a court make an award.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Then the City

          3  has reached out to the federal government and made a

          4  case that you are aware of?

          5                 MR. McARDLE: They have. And they have

          6  been told that, well, FEMA can't do it, unless it's

          7  an insurance thing, they'll be happy to pay an

          8  insurance premium, right? But the insurance industry

          9  says we don't know how many lawsuits there are going

         10  to be. We don't know how big the exposure is, so we

         11  can't give you an insurance policy. And at which

         12  point FEMA says, well, you know, our pockets, and so

         13  the City is out there exposed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, then,

         15  what is the solution that you would want the federal

         16  government to do?

         17                 MR. McARDLE: I want the federal

         18  government to take on for what happened after

         19  September 11th the same responsibility they have

         20  taken for the events of the day.

         21                 You may know that they have appointed

         22  a special master. That special master will address

         23  all claims that arise from the day, okay? So that if

         24  you were killed or injured on the day, you have an

         25  option to go to the special master, he is developing
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          2  regulations as we speak, he was on PBS last evening

          3  talking about it, and he, without budgetary

          4  limitations can make a fair award to the individual

          5  for the damages occurred, both economic and

          6  non-economic damages, but only for what happened on

          7  the day, not for things that happened after the day.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: This may be a

          9  matter that our congress people and Senators need to

         10  take up and advocate.

         11                 MR. McARDLE: I think they need to

         12  hear from everyone and would hear from you well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm very

         14  confident that Congressman Reingall, who was

         15  expected to be here --

         16                 MR. McARDLE: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But because

         18  they're all down in Washington today, would be very

         19  supportive of what you have in mind, and I will

         20  relate that to him personally, and I would suggest

         21  to you that you don't hesitate to communicate that

         22  to him as well.

         23                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm aware

         25  that you don't know the exact numbers, but in terms
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          2  of minorities, women that are working down there,

          3  and have contracts down there; can you get those

          4  numbers?

          5                 MR. McARDLE: I think I can. There are

          6  actually very few contractors actually working on

          7  the site. And, again, I don't mean to speak

          8  comprehensively, but I know that, for example, the

          9  Tully Organization, which is dealing with one

         10  quadrant, has a demolition subcontractor specialist

         11  who works for them, and they have trucking

         12  subcontractors, one of whom is a certified WBE, and

         13  I know, you know, a certified WBE was working on the

         14  project for some portion of the time.

         15                 Part of the problem was that her

         16  company was brought to the site because she was

         17  working for the Tully Organization on another job,

         18  and when that job kicked back up, you know, they had

         19  to kind of find other trucks, because her trucks

         20  were needed over here.

         21                 And I know they have reached out,

         22  they have a number of independent, you know,

         23  owner/operators, and I suspect because there's a

         24  large minority ownership in the independent

         25  owner/operators, that a number of owner/operators
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          2  are working on the job as well.

          3                 But the contractors on the site are

          4  actually quite limited, and there's a specialty

          5  dewatering company, Moretrench (phonetic) that does

          6  this work. The tieback contractor right now is

          7  Nicholson, again, a national company that

          8  specializes in this work. There are two specialty

          9  steel company, and you know, steel erector

         10  companies, Koch and Scanza (phonetic), again, all

         11  members of my association, it's the nature of the

         12  work that's being done. But the number of

         13  contractors is very few.

         14                 It's very clear to me that in the

         15  nature of this work, that you're facing the

         16  emergency. The real question, and I think it's a

         17  question you pose quite correctly, is what happens

         18  when you get passed this emergency here, you're

         19  working 24/7, where there's really no way to price

         20  the next day's work on any other basis. Trust me,

         21  we've looked at it in that fashion, that it is when

         22  they move to the recovery, and the reconstruction of

         23  this area, downtown area, and the extent to which

         24  there is this downtown corporation doing things,

         25  that really one has to look at how one makes the
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          2  contracting more organized and more inclusive.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, we are

          4  -- I am receiving great concerns from so-called

          5  minority contractors, and workers about being

          6  excluded.

          7                 You, not only in this phase, but even

          8  more concerned about being excluded in the next

          9  phase, which is a much longer term phase, and we

         10  want to make sure that by the same token, New York

         11  contractors, New York workers, all are given the

         12  priority of opportunity for that work at the World

         13  Trade Center for that business at the World Trade

         14  Center.

         15                 Not to suggest any incompetence for

         16  those who may not be New York-based, but it's just

         17  that we are in an economic situation right now, and

         18  any opportunities to come out of that by employing

         19  our own citizens and by signing up our own business,

         20  helps not only New York, but it really helps the

         21  nation.

         22                 And, so, we would hope that you would

         23  be very vigilant about making sure of this

         24  inclusiveness. We would look for you to make sure

         25  that that happens and, of course, we will do our job
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          2  to do that, as well, but that concern is out there

          3  loud, and we want to nip it in the bud by, you know,

          4  solving it, not by ignoring it, not by pretending it

          5  doesn't exist.

          6                 MR. McARDLE: Councilman, it's very

          7  clear that you have read the testimony that I have

          8  given so many times on why the Croton Filter Plant

          9  should be located in New York City, because with the

         10  Croton Filter Plant in New York City, the dollars go

         11  to New York City workers, in the main, much more

         12  than it ever will, if it's way up north in

         13  Westchester County.

         14                 The same issue applies here. I am

         15  pleased to say that the Tully Organization, which is

         16  working at the site is located right there under the

         17  flight path in Willetts Point in Queens there on

         18  Northern Boulevard, the Grace Organization that's

         19  working down there is located in Whitestone, Bovis

         20  has a headquarters in the old Pan Am Building,

         21  Turner is over on Hudson Street, Morse Diesel is

         22  located here. These are companies with substantial

         23  presence in New York City. I think it's one of the

         24  things that allowed them to respond so quickly, and,

         25  quite frankly, one of the reasons they were
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          2  selected.

          3                 I mean, the Tully Organization, Peter

          4  Tully is the president of my organization this year,

          5  the Tully Organization had literally just finished

          6  doing utility work in Liberty Square the Friday

          7  before the incident. They hadn't even mapped what

          8  they had done because they were coming back to do

          9  more work.

         10                 They were there with machines on

         11  Route 9A, hopefully doing a job that Council Member

         12  Freed didn't have to complain too much about. She

         13  actually, you know, I suspect didn't have a lot

         14  because they did well when they did the project in

         15  the Village, they had that segment, the first

         16  segment completed and I think they learned from that

         17  segment and did a good job downtown.

         18                 So, they were there. They are New

         19  York-based, they are New York-owned. Actually, the

         20  company is owned by Mrs. Tully, but it does not

         21  qualify as an M/WBE, but technically, it is actually

         22  owned by Mrs. Tully, the older or the middle

         23  generation Mrs. Tully.

         24                 But that's clear. And we have looked

         25  at our workforce in the heavy construction industry
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          2  in New York City, 70 percent of the people live in

          3  New York City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: What

          5  percentage are minority?

          6                 MR. McARDLE: I would, and, again,

          7  this is a guesstimate, I would guess right now

          8  probably in the industry at least 40 percent of the

          9  workforce is minority.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If you can

         11  take that guesstimate and make it into a --

         12                 MR. McARDLE: Let me tell you where

         13  you can get the numbers.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         15                 MR. McARDLE: Okay? And people have

         16  heard me talk about this before.

         17                 Contractors report these numbers to

         18  the City of New York every month. We tell you how

         19  many hours we've worked, and who worked them. And

         20  the real question is why, since these numbers are

         21  reported every month, you don't get a report on your

         22  desk every month that tells you what happened the

         23  month before.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         25                 One final question, does the issue of
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          2  indemnification apply to Bechtel?

          3                 MR. McARDLE: Oh, I would think anyone

          4  who went to work there now, knowing what we have

          5  gone through, would ask to be indemnified. Because

          6  trust me, if your name is on a sign down there,

          7  they're going to put your name on the lawsuit, on

          8  the theory that you catch as many people as you can.

          9                 Just don't put your name on a big

         10  sign. I mean, if you have been to Ground Zero, to

         11  the platform, you look out and you are in the Bovis

         12  quadrant, and you see Bovis signs, you see Loma on

         13  the side of the big crane and, you know, all the big

         14  signs, people just taking notes, you know. That's a

         15  real concern we all have.

         16                 It's not frivolous. There are people

         17  who truly believe that they have been damaged by

         18  what occurred on the day who were not in the

         19  buildings, who were elsewhere, who might have been

         20  in Battery Park City, might have been, you know, in

         21  the neighborhood. They are looking for someone to

         22  help them.

         23                 Small businesses have been devastated

         24  by this. What do you do, how do you recover.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I assume our
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          2  City workers are indemnified?

          3                 MR. McARDLE: Yes, they are. Okay?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So that issue

          5  is resolved, and that may speak to another reason

          6  why we make sure they stay involved.

          7                 MR. McARDLE: This has been a

          8  public/private partnership. This has worked well.

          9  This has worked well across the board, and I think,

         10  you know, everybody's pride of organization and

         11  effort has been shown in all of this, no question

         12  about that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just a follow up

         16  on that.

         17                 Overlooking the fact my name is on a

         18  couple big signs down there, but not the ones you

         19  mean, you bring out an interesting point, which is

         20  that if the City hadn't handled this as sort of like

         21  the controlling agency or the agency that rushed in

         22  to try and take care of everything, but maybe it was

         23  handled the way it has in other disasters where

         24  essentially the federal government takes it, the

         25  individual companies, and for that matter, those of
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          2  us who do live around it, and the small businesses

          3  might actually be in better shape right now, simply

          4  because they might be a little bit more forthcoming

          5  with some of the money.

          6                 But if you've been following what

          7  happened, as you said, the small businesses haven't

          8  been getting grants, many of them are about to go

          9  under because they can get loans, but if you're not

         10  sure if your business is going to continue, why

         11  would you want to be personally indebted past the

         12  lifetime of your business, and even those of us who

         13  live downtown, because it's fallen upon the

         14  individuals to do the clean up, as opposed to the

         15  federal government, we've had a very splotchy impact

         16  of that.

         17                 I mean, there are many buildings that

         18  you could walk to from here that have never yet been

         19  properly cleaned up, because of the way -- I mean,

         20  I'm not faulting anyone. I mean, I think it happened

         21  because the City was in the best position to be able

         22  to handle it, and as you said, many of the

         23  contractors came in because they were here, and to

         24  an extent it's also their City, and, you know, I

         25  mean there was a certain amount of concern and
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          2  patriotism, if you will, for the City, that people

          3  rushed in with the volunteers as well, and that now

          4  we're kind of sitting back and looking around and

          5  saying, hey, wait a minute, where is everybody?

          6  Where is the indemnification, where are the

          7  programs, who is there for us now to help us go

          8  forward.

          9                 You probably heard that many of the

         10  families of people who died the day the World Trade

         11  Center came down have not yet been able to find any

         12  kind of support. There's support for, you know, the

         13  spouses and families of the uniformed service

         14  workers, as there should be, obviously, but there is

         15  a whole community of various communities out there,

         16  who are still looking for some help from the federal

         17  government, and we're not getting it.

         18                 MR. McARDLE: We have much to learn

         19  from the event and the response. And I think your

         20  focus on the small businesses is a particularly

         21  important one.

         22                 The importance of the small

         23  businesses is not just to the business person. It's

         24  to the people that they serve. And if you don't have

         25  the lunchrooms, if you don't have the shopping, then
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          2  in fact other people just won't stay downtown with

          3  their businesses.

          4                 I've made a point, and I think you

          5  will appreciate it, that one of the things we need

          6  to address quickly is the retail shopping that's

          7  been lost from the World Trade Center. Not because

          8  there aren't places in New York City to shop, but

          9  there aren't places equivalent downtown. And if you

         10  work in an office downtown and you can't shop at

         11  lunchtime or after work, and you have to go to

         12  Midtown, then when the boss says, where should we

         13  locate, you say Midtown, and the small restaurants.

         14                 I think one of the things that would

         15  be helpful, and this is me speaking, not my

         16  organization, but as somebody who comes down here a

         17  lot, is that people need to talk to the small

         18  businesses. Find out how well people talk to them.

         19                 My suspicion is that very few of the

         20  small businesses were known to anyone, meaning their

         21  licensed got tied up in things, you don't know quite

         22  who owns the business, but no one ever talked to

         23  them about what their prospects were of when they

         24  could reopen, or what they should do.

         25                 I mean, for a small business below
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          2  Chambers Street, to have to find their way up to

          3  Pier 92 doesn't work well. It just doesn't work

          4  well.

          5                 And by the way, the impact was all

          6  the way up into Councilwoman Quinn's district. No

          7  question, businesses that far up were affected.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Certainly into

          9  SoHo.

         10                 MR. McARDLE: Absolutely. I mean,

         11  there's just no question about it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And the Lower East

         13  Side.

         14                 MR. McARDLE: Yes.

         15                 I mean, all over.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         17                 MR. McARDLE: I mean, we really

         18  understood for the first time when this occurred how

         19  broad spread the interactions downtown have become.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just so you should

         22  know, and if you want some of that information I can

         23  actually get it for you, because we've done

         24  enumerable surveys downtown, where we're trying to

         25  work with all the small businesses. We've had a
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          2  number of just two nights ago, something called Wall

          3  Street Rising, we got a number of the local

          4  restaurants, we have some of the best restaurants in

          5  the world to do contributions and we're trying to --

          6  but the fight goes on. As I said, they're not

          7  getting grants, and what we need are grants and

          8  there are no grants available, and if those small

          9  businesses go under, we've maybe lost 100,000 jobs

         10  downtown now and through the City, but then you're

         11  going to be looking at 150 or 200,000 or more just

         12  because of the ripple effects if those smaller

         13  businesses go under.

         14                 And also, the construction that was

         15  going on downtown, and as you know, like every

         16  block, almost every building had something going on,

         17  was being renovated, building, do rooftop additions,

         18  whatever, this has kind of brought a lot of that to

         19  a screeching halt.

         20                 One of the areas that provided a lot

         21  of the jobs, including a lot of the various

         22  construction work, and contracting, is now kind of

         23  in a limbo not knowing where we're going to go, and

         24  what's going to happen to this.

         25                 Council Member Boyland had a
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          2  question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes, I do.

          4                 Welcome, Francis.

          5                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I first want

          7  to start by welcoming, we have a member from the New

          8  York State Assembly in the house, a good friend of

          9  mine, Assemblyman Jeff Arbery. Welcome. Welcome.

         10                 Francis, let me start by asking a

         11  question. I'm going to allude to some of the things

         12  that my previous colleagues have made mention to,

         13  and I'm receiving phone calls on, which is, of

         14  course, the minority contracting process.

         15                 There seems to be some sort of rumor,

         16  and I don't like to believe in rumors, I like to

         17  always come directly to the source, and I will

         18  question DDC as well on the designations of certain

         19  jobs, such as excavation and demolition, but the

         20  concern is that, from the minority contract,

         21  especially the smaller businesses, that they're not

         22  -- one, there's not an open door policy, and, two,

         23  that there is a rumor that there may be a

         24  recruitment of minority contractors from Atlanta.

         25                 Now, that's the information I had
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          2  received. I don't know if you had heard of that?

          3  From Atlanta.

          4                 MR. McARDLE: No.

          5                 In point of fact, as I said before,

          6  there are actually very few contractors per se

          7  engaged at the site.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: What jobs are

          9  being done now? I assume demolition?

         10                 MR. McARDLE: Well, let me, you know,

         11  and, again, I'll speak most directly about the Tully

         12  quadrant, which has about 60 percent of the area.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         14                 MR. McARDLE: The Tully Organization

         15  is there working directly themselves. They are

         16  engaging directly their own, you know, they hire

         17  people who dig there, the machines are machines they

         18  either own or have rented, and it's their own labor

         19  force, they are a company of size in the City of New

         20  York, and it's their own labor force that they have

         21  worked and they have a well-integrated workforce. I

         22  mean, there's no question about the diversity of

         23  their workforce.

         24                 They have a very few subcontractors

         25  working for them. They have working for them some
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          2  trucking companies, you know.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          4                 MR. McARDLE: Again, trucking

          5  companies and a number of the truckers that work for

          6  them are owner operators, and I would suspect,

          7  although I don't know and don't mean to speak, but

          8  there are a number of minority-owned truckers within

          9  that --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: What about

         11  crane operators?

         12                 MR. McARDLE: The crane operators are

         13  on the Tully payroll. Tully, by the way, only has

         14  occasionally a crane, but the backhoe operators,

         15  because they're mainly backhoe, those operators are

         16  on the Tully payroll, as are the laborers, and

         17  that's their workforce routinely.

         18                 They have an iron worker

         19  subcontractor who is working for them, who is really

         20  a joint venture, almost a joint venture partner, and

         21  that's Yonkers Contracting.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         23                 MR. McARDLE: Who, again, is somebody

         24  who works with the Tullys routinely and actually

         25  kind of got called in because they were working on
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          2  the Manhattan Bridge, and had iron workers

          3  immediately available when other issues came up.

          4                 And they have a demolition sub.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

          6                 MR. McARDLE: A specialist who has

          7  come down from Connecticut, quite frankly, and quite

          8  frankly, because the kind of demolition that's being

          9  done, which is --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: From

         11  Connecticut?

         12                 MR. McARDLE: It's mechanical

         13  demolition. New York City by and large doesn't do

         14  mechanical demolition, we do hand demolition. The

         15  expertise in mechanical demolition, you know,

         16  because we don't do it here, isn't here.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And the only

         18  mechanical demolition you're saying is Connecticut?

         19  There is none --

         20                 MR. McARDLE: Amec has one from New

         21  Jersey, Muzacci (phonetic) at this point. And,

         22  again, a kind of expertise about how you do this

         23  kind of work that we did not have in the City,

         24  because we don't do it routinely, is some of it's

         25  done out of the airport, occasionally at a sewage
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          2  treatment plant. But when you take down a building

          3  in the City of New York, you don't do it

          4  mechanically, you do it by hand.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

          6                 MR. McARDLE: Because if you think

          7  that you're going to impact your neighbors, you want

          8  to take it down --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That's the

         10  sensitivity.

         11                 MR. McARDLE: -- As carefully as

         12  possible.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: We understand

         14  that.

         15                 MR. McARDLE: And you must see that in

         16  your district, and I'm sure every Councilperson

         17  does.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Run through

         19  the exercise of implosion and explosion in our area,

         20  it's very sensitive in terms of taking buildings

         21  down.

         22                 MR. McARDLE: And if you did do

         23  anything in connection with the tank implosion in

         24  Brooklyn, which was the second time they actually

         25  imploded anything, the first firm that came in with
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          2  demolition expertise was that firm, CDI. Because

          3  they have such a national reputation in that area.

          4  But, again, very few firms engaged.

          5                 And because simply by the nature of

          6  how they got there to begin with, and there has

          7  never been a process that has been really open,

          8  where there's been subcontractor bidding of any

          9  kind, it's really who you had with you, almost day

         10  one, and who you continue in this pool.

         11                 I think the real question to be asked

         12  is what do you do when you move beyond, what is the

         13  emergency phase, into what will happen next.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: In the

         15  beginning --

         16                 MR. McARDLE: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: You know,

         18  because of the extreme sensitivity of the issue, we

         19  understand that there had to be an immediate action,

         20  but we would have questioned the bidding process

         21  automatically in this Committee, in terms of how

         22  quickly, from Turner, Bovis, Tully, was selected,

         23  but we understand the situation and we've sort of

         24  overlooked the situation knowing that we needed

         25  something immediately.
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          2                 MR. McARDLE: Tully was selected. They

          3  were there. That's how they got selected, they were

          4  on the job.

          5                 It was fortuitous because they are

          6  one of the largest road contractors in New York City

          7  without that level of expertise.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          9                 My second question, and this may be

         10  directed to DDC is, in terms of -- they are going to

         11  come on back, oh, wonderful. So, we'll do a question

         12  with DDC.

         13                 MR. McARDLE: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: But I thank

         15  you, Francis. And one of my concerns is, as my

         16  colleague has mentioned, alluded to, the minority

         17  contracting piece, in terms of, in my district we do

         18  a large amount of development, we deal very largely

         19  with, from plumbers, from excavation, from

         20  electrical, from demolition on down, and the concern

         21  is that they want, and in terms of an involvement in

         22  this process, and this is going to be a huge

         23  process, and we're looking at how we not just

         24  develop the World Trade Center, but throughout the

         25  outer boroughs, what are we going to do, and we want
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          2  to make sure that Tully and your Association stays

          3  involved as well.

          4                 MR. McARDLE: We have all along.

          5                 And I think Tully has a good record

          6  that they've had over the years working with the

          7  City M/WBE program, so I think there was no question

          8  of their credentials when they came to this process.

          9  They weren't going to bring in anybody from Atlanta,

         10  I can assure you of that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         12                 MR. McARDLE: I'm not even sure they

         13  travel to Atlanta very often.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: All right,

         15  thank you very much, Frank.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 MR. McARDLE: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Next will be DDC,

         20  Donald Hooker, who is the ACCO for DDC.

         21                 Where is he? Okay.

         22                 Thank you. And if you have handouts,

         23  if you can just give them to the Sergeant-At-Arms.

         24                 You have handouts?

         25                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED:

          3                 Okay, if you could raise your right

          4  hand, please?

          5                 Do you swear to tell the truth, the

          6  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

          7                 MR. HOOKER: I do.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          9                 Make sure the light is off on the

         10  panel on the microphone. When the light's off, the

         11  microphone is on.

         12                 MR. HOOKER: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great.

         14                 And then if you can, again, state

         15  your name for the record, and then please proceed.

         16                 MR. HOOKER: Yes, good morning. My

         17  name is Donald Hooker. I'm the Agency Chief

         18  Contracting Officer at the Department of Design and

         19  Construction. I have a brief statement to read and

         20  then I will take any and all questions from you.

         21                 Just to kind of recount the events of

         22  September 11th, the United States suffered a

         23  catastrophic terrorist attack. Along with many

         24  others, the Department of Design and Construction

         25  responded immediately in an effort to save lives and
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          2  recover the remains of the thousands of innocent

          3  victims who perished in the tragic aftermath of this

          4  cowardly attack.

          5                 The lives of hundreds of heroic New

          6  York City firefighters and New York City Port

          7  Authority Police Officers were lost in their attempt

          8  to save others. The recovery effort continues today

          9  as a primary focus at the World Trade Center site,

         10  and as is the safety of those working at the site.

         11                 Of the original estimated 1.2 million

         12  tons of debris, more than half, 720,000 tons, have

         13  been removed to date. Close to 65,000 truck loads.

         14                 The slurry wall is intact and is

         15  being stabilized, the entire debris removal project

         16  should be completed this summer.

         17                 The City's response to the attack was

         18  something that all New Yorkers can be proud of. We

         19  continue to work 24 hours a day, seven days a week,

         20  in an attempt to bring closure of the families of

         21  the victims and to help in the economic recovery of

         22  New York City.

         23                 I'm available for questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Gee, I hardly know

         25  where to start.
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          2                 Did you want to --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

          4                 Thank you very much for your presence

          5  and your testimony. And I think we have had an

          6  opportunity to speak before by phone regarding what

          7  was going on down there. I'm not sure but --

          8                 MR. HOOKER: I don't recall that, but

          9  --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In any case,

         11  thank you for being here today.

         12                 Let me ask you, so how is it going?

         13  DDC is supervising? It sounds like you're doing a

         14  great job.

         15                 MR. HOOKER: DDC, by all measures, is

         16  doing an excellent job. DDC was brought in very

         17  early. We remain there today.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And how are

         19  the staff? The engineers, the architects and others,

         20  how are they carrying out their duties?

         21                 MR. HOOKER: They're doing an

         22  excellent job. It has been a long endeavor, as

         23  everyone knows. It's an extraordinary time and an

         24  extraordinary project.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Why do we
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          2  need to replace you?

          3                 MR. HOOKER: I have no comment on

          4  that, nor do I have knowledge of us being replaced.

          5  We'll be there as long as we're needed.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In other

          7  words, we don't need to replace you?

          8                 MR. HOOKER: We'll --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I just want

         10  to be sure.

         11                 MR. HOOKER: We'll be there as long as

         12  we're required.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         14                 Well, I just want to commend you for

         15  the wonderful job you're doing, and I think that you

         16  should not be replaced. It seems as if it's a very

         17  cost effective type of operation that's going on

         18  down there. It's a wonderful thing to see our City

         19  at work in times of emergency doing such an

         20  excellent job. In speaking to some of those on your

         21  staff who are down there, I get the sense that

         22  they're very proud of their work. I get the sense

         23  that they're inspired by their work. I get the sense

         24  that they want to stay there and continue to do that

         25  work. Do you get the same sense?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            62

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 MR. HOOKER: Well, I do. And I get the

          3  sense that all New Yorkers want to be a part of this

          4  endeavor, and to the extent that the DDC personnel

          5  has been able to, I think there is great pride in

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And it's a

          8  wonderful thing when one of our own agencies, one of

          9  our arms of government is out there, you know, doing

         10  such a wonderful thing. And you should be proud of

         11  that and you should brag about that, and you don't

         12  really want to leave. You really don't want to

         13  leave. We don't want you to go. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just to follow up

         15  in that, I guess, there have been rumors out there

         16  that DDC was about to be replaced, do you have any

         17  knowledge of that at all?

         18                 MR. HOOKER: No, I read the

         19  newspapers, that's the only information. The

         20  information you have is what I have.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: As far as where we

         22  are with the emergency contracts, several questions

         23  have arisen, as far as will there be written

         24  contracts, where are we with that? Where are we in

         25  the question of indemnification, and how long will
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          2  we be in an emergency period?

          3                 MR. HOOKER: Well, to answer your

          4  first question, I think former Commissioner McArdle

          5  stated it very well. There are contracts that are in

          6  a draft form and they are still in negotiation.

          7  There are a couple of major stumbling blocks, and

          8  one is the indemnification which I think he stated

          9  the case very well. The contractors came in with the

         10  next expectation that they were there to help to

         11  bring their expertise, they responded without a

         12  thought. I would think for the most part they

         13  responded without getting advice from their Counsel,

         14  they came in without thinking, and they responded.

         15  And I think we very much understand their concern,

         16  that they don't want to be held responsible for

         17  everything that happened at the direction of the FBI

         18  or the Secret Service or the Fire Department or

         19  others who were calling the shots early on.

         20                 By the same token, the City does not

         21  feel that it should have total liability for that.

         22  It was an attack on the nation, it was not an attack

         23  on New York City, others have been given

         24  indemnification, I believe that we have the same

         25  position. How it will be resolved I think is at a
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          2  level higher than myself.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: When we're talking

          4  about the emergency contracts, obviously there are

          5  four major contracts at the Trade Center; any idea

          6  how many other contracts have been involved, how

          7  many other emergency contracts have been issued

          8  around the September 11th attack?

          9                 MR. HOOKER: I can only speak for DDC,

         10  and DDC has not issued any other contracts.

         11                 Frank spoke to an insurance broker

         12  agreement that we're trying to negotiate, and,

         13  again, it's still in the negotiation stage. But I

         14  don't know of other contracts done by other

         15  agencies, I expect there are.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, because our

         17  understanding, where there were a number of

         18  different agencies that had done emergency

         19  contracts, and obviously the need for that was

         20  obvious.

         21                 The other thing that we keep hearing

         22  in the media is the possibility of Bechtel coming in

         23  and replacing the four major contractors. What's the

         24  story about that?

         25                 MR. HOOKER: Again, all I know is what
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          2  I read in the newspaper. I understand there is a

          3  proposal out there, I haven't seen it, I don't know

          4  what the merits are, and I don't know if it's

          5  something that will come to pass.

          6                 Again, it's not a decision that my

          7  agency is making. My agency is there for as long as

          8  we're required.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And that decision

         10  has been made by the Mayor's Office, OEM?

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I believe that's probably

         12  more where the discussion is. Maybe at FEMA it may

         13  be at a federal level as well.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because the

         15  obvious other ongoing concern is, if we do enter

         16  into some contracts and then that contract is moved

         17  over to another agency or authority, it would take

         18  basically the control out of the hands of the City,

         19  and not only would it sort of, you know, hurt the

         20  incoming Administration, but certainly the City as a

         21  whole, because I think particularly given the way

         22  this whole situation has evolved, that the City has

         23  sort of been in control and it wasn't any other

         24  agency and for obvious reasons we'd like to keep it

         25  that way.
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          2                 MR. HOOKER: Again, I don't know the

          3  proposal that's been submitted by Bechtel, I don't

          4  know what relationship has been proposed between if

          5  and any other entities, I really can't comment.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: That's hasn't come

          7  to your agency?

          8                 MR. HOOKER: No. No, it has not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, let me let

         10  some of my colleagues. We've also been joined by

         11  Council Member Gifford Miller.

         12                 I think Council Member Quinn, and

         13  then Council Member Boyland.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: You can go.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Council Member

         16  Boyland.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Are we on?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         20                 Just let's go over, let's start from

         21  the beginning, let's go over the four major

         22  contractors and their responsibility. Let's crawl

         23  before we walk here.

         24                 MR. HOOKER: Okay.

         25                 There was an emergency declaration --

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            67

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          3                 MR. HOOKER: That identified four

          4  contractors, each would have a quadrant. I believe

          5  we all know the contractors, Tully, Amec, Turner and

          6  Bovis Lend Lease.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Go over their

          8  responsibilities as of now, what role they're

          9  playing in the excavation, demolition, everything.

         10                 MR. HOOKER: Their responsibilities

         11  are to remove debris in each one of their quadrants.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Area. Give us

         13  this -- act as if we don't know the answers for

         14  those that just walked in the room. Can we start

         15  from the beginning?

         16                 Your testimony is very, very short

         17  and not in detail, and for those that don't know and

         18  don't know you, can we just go from the beginning,

         19  sir?

         20                 MR. HOOKER: Okay. Well, maybe I

         21  should explain the agency chief contracting officer

         22  does not administer the contracts, nor do I

         23  negotiate the contracts. I make sure that they are

         24  done in a fair and proper manner and I make sure

         25  that the City procurement rules are followed, and
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          2  also paperwork is done in a way that is consistent

          3  with the rules and consistent with emergency

          4  declarations.

          5                 I did not sign the quadrants to the

          6  contractors. I'm presuming it was done based on a

          7  particular kind of expertise that contractor had,

          8  but that's a presumption, surely.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         10                 MR. HOOKER: There was of course an

         11  immediate need to clear the roadways of debris, I

         12  imagine that was the first task. The demolition that

         13  has taken place has taken place as it is

         14  practicable, and as necessary. Our role has been to

         15  assist the Fire Department and the federal agencies

         16  to help remove debris so that remains, or people

         17  could be rescued initially and now so that debris

         18  can be removed in a respectful manner.

         19                 The scope of the work changes on a

         20  daily basis, as I think Frank probably described to

         21  you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

         23                 MR. HOOKER: That expertise that

         24  requires changes fairly rapidly.

         25                 It's not a conventional construction
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          2  project.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. So,

          4  each --

          5                 MR. HOOKER: Each has similar

          6  responsibilities. They have a different area of the

          7  World Trade Center, each has similar --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, but

          9  from there -- as Francis was talking about, from

         10  their labor forces on down to crane operations,

         11  machinery, demolition, excavation on down the line?

         12                 MR. HOOKER: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: So you're

         14  saying that we need to speak actually with each

         15  contractor on its own to find out their roles in

         16  terms of how they're dealing with the development,

         17  because you don't have an answer to that.

         18                 MR. HOOKER: That's right.

         19                 The contracts are, as emergency

         20  contracts often are, are fairly general because you

         21  don't necessarily know exactly what's going to be

         22  required.

         23                 If I could perhaps explain how the

         24  emergency declaration process takes place within the

         25  rules, and maybe that will help to some degree.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Does any

          3  other member on your staff have an answer to the

          4  question in terms of, if we don't, we know we have

          5  Tully here, I don't know if we have, do we have

          6  Bovis here? I don't know if they're here to

          7  represent themselves. Are there any other member on

          8  your staff that has their hand sort of stuck in the

          9  project that can answer a question in terms of which

         10  contractors, where they are in development, where

         11  they are in stages, what they're doing, the

         12  development of their projects and what quadrants

         13  they're in?

         14                 MR. HOOKER: There is no one on my

         15  staff, and no one I brought with me. That was not a

         16  specific question that I was asked to address, so I

         17  didn't come prepared for it.

         18                 Certainly I could have reached out to

         19  our contract managers who are on the site for that

         20  kind of information.

         21                 DDC has a project manager assigned to

         22  each CM contractor, and there are meetings at least

         23  twice --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: And who do

         25  they refer to when they report back? Do they report
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          2  back to your office?

          3                 MR. HOOKER: No, they report back to

          4  the Deputy Commissioner and to the Commissioner who

          5  had been at Ground Zero virtually since the

          6  incident.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: The Deputy

          8  Commissioner Lhota?

          9                 MR. HOOKER: No. Deputy Commissioner

         10  Burton, and Commissioner Holden.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         12                 Let me ask you a question about

         13  clean-up efforts.

         14                 The Port Authority, how are they

         15  involved in this process at all?

         16                 What is the role that they're playing

         17  in the clean up?

         18                 I know in your testimony you spoke

         19  about the levels of debris that's being taken to

         20  Fresh Kills. My concern about Fresh Kills is -- I'm

         21  on the Environmental Committee, and we had a big

         22  issue about closing Fresh Kills, now we're taking

         23  more debris over there. Are they prepared for this

         24  level of debris that's being brought over there in

         25  truckloads? Is this something that later on down the
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          2  line we're going to deal with in your organization,

          3  as well that's going to have to deal with this?

          4  Especially in the closing of Fresh Kills?

          5                 MR. HOOKER: I don't know what the

          6  final solution is for the debris that's being taken

          7  to Fresh Kills. I think it's being taken there

          8  because that was a convenient site that had the

          9  facilities to accept it and to look through. Whether

         10  it will ultimately be left there I think is a

         11  question that no one knows at this time.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: No one knows.

         13  Okay.

         14                 MR. HOOKER: I think that's -- I mean,

         15  in part will be a federal decision. I don't know how

         16  long the FBI will be looking through it. I mean,

         17  these are not things that we're used to dealing

         18  with.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Well, my

         20  question is leading to the fact that, and the outer

         21  years, as opposed to now, that we're going to be

         22  dealing with a number of issues, from the

         23  rebuilding, the reconstruction, the excavation of

         24  the World Trade Center, what happens and how it

         25  affects the other boroughs, how it affects Brooklyn,
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          2  Queens, Staten Island, how we're going to deal with

          3  that, and how we deal with involvement of City

          4  workers.

          5                 I know the major concern that I had

          6  over my desk this morning was an abundance of

          7  minority contractors calling me, that they aren't

          8  involved in the process, so I'm sure if the minority

          9  contractors are calling, there are a number of other

         10  entities that want to get involved in the clean-up

         11  that want to play a part in it.

         12                 And it's just a number of concerns,

         13  and I don't know if you're prepared to answer them.

         14  Your testimony is not answering any of the questions

         15  that I have.

         16                 MR. HOOKER: Well, those are excellent

         17  questions, but our focus now is the removal of

         18  debris. I'm sure there will be subsequent efforts to

         19  deal with the reconstruction, and for final

         20  disposition of all its materials, scrap metal I

         21  believe is going to recycling plants. These are

         22  things that will be resolved over the next few

         23  months. I don't have the answers for them today.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: All right.

         25                 And the last question I have, and I
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          2  think the Chairman alluded to that, is the emergency

          3  contract; when will we know, will there be any other

          4  bidding? Will there be any other involvement of any

          5  other contractors at any point in time, besides

          6  these major four contractors that's involved now? Do

          7  you have an answer for that?

          8                 MR. HOOKER: Not that I know of.

          9                 Now, as the work becomes more routine

         10  --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         12                 MR. HOOKER: If that ever occurs,

         13  there's no reason why the CMs couldn't engage in

         14  competitive bidding for some of the work. It's not a

         15  particular requirement of the contract, but it is a

         16  way that many contractors arrive at good prices for

         17  the work that needs to be done.

         18                 There's nothing in the contract that

         19  prohibits that. There will be written contracts at

         20  some point, but we need to resolve the

         21  indemnification issue, and we need to be certain

         22  that everything that we've put into these contracts

         23  is reimbursable by the federal government.

         24                 I think we want to be very careful to

         25  make certain that that happens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 MR. HOOKER: You're welcome.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON PERKINS:

          6  Councilwoman Quinn.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thanks.

          8                 I'm just going to go a couple steps

          9  back, if that's okay.

         10                 MR. HOOKER: Sure.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So, you're

         12  saying that to your knowledge the City is not in

         13  negotiations with Bechtel?

         14                 MR. HOOKER: Not to my knowledge, no.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: If the City was

         16  in negotiations with Bechtel, or a -- if the City

         17  was in negotiations with a company to do the kind of

         18  work in question, et cetera, et cetera, would you

         19  know?

         20                 MR. HOOKER: I would know if DDC was

         21  engaging Bechtel, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But if the

         23  Mayor's Office -- let me back up.

         24                 I guess you say you're not aware that

         25  the City is in negotiations with Bechtel, I take
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          2  your word at that. I guess what I want to know is,

          3  could negotiations be going on with Bechtel, or with

          4  a company such as Bechtel, to do this type of work,

          5  and you not be aware of it?

          6                 Because one could take from your lack

          7  of awareness the idea that that means the City is

          8  not negotiating. So, I want to know when I leave,

          9  does your not knowing mean that no negotiations are

         10  happening? Or does it mean you don't know?

         11                 MR. HOOKER: The fact that I have not

         12  been involved at this point --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry?

         14                 MR. HOOKER: The fact that I have not

         15  been involved as the Agency Chief Contracting

         16  Officer of DDC only means that DDC has not been

         17  involved in the negotiations.

         18                 I understand there is a proposal out

         19  there, I don't know to what degree it affects DDC or

         20  the contractors, I don't know the merits of it, and

         21  I don't know how far along the negotiations are, if

         22  they are along at all.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Do you know

         24  whether any other City entities, agencies, or the

         25  Mayor's Office are in negotiations with Bechtel?
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          2                 MR. HOOKER: No. But they wouldn't

          3  necessarily inform me if they were.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Who, or what

          5  other agencies, or Mayoral entities or whatever,

          6  could possibly negotiate a contract such as the one

          7  that the papers have described with Bechtel?

          8                 MR. HOOKER: I can't say absolutely. I

          9  would suggest it could be the Port Authority, it

         10  could be the federal emergency management agencies.

         11  There are a number of players in this particular

         12  endeavor.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, no, no.

         14                 Who in the Giuliani Administration

         15  could be engaged in negotiation with Bechtel?

         16                 MR. HOOKER: I wouldn't know.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, you must

         18  know. I mean, I'm not asking you if they are. I

         19  mean, I'm asking you a question, let's take Bechtel

         20  out of it.

         21                 Who in the City of New York, in this

         22  Administration, is empowered to negotiate a contract

         23  of the size, the scope, et cetera, as the Bechtel

         24  Contract.

         25                 You're not saying they are, I just
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          2  want to know who could, because there's probably

          3  many, many, many more people in the City workforce

          4  who couldn't negotiate such a contract. So, who

          5  could, if that opportunity was to arrive?

          6                 MR. HOOKER: I can't really answer

          7  that question. I can negotiate contracts on behalf

          8  of DDC and that's the limit of my responsibility. I

          9  have an oversight group, the Mayor's Office of

         10  Contracts, they typically do not negotiate

         11  contracts, nor do they hold contracts. I don't know,

         12  to answer your question --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But there are

         14  other people at the Deputy Mayor level, or other

         15  Commissioner level or other level of yours parallel

         16  and other agencies who could potentially negotiate a

         17  contract of the type and size that has been

         18  mentioned in the papers.

         19                 MR. HOOKER: Again, I can only address

         20  what my responsibilities are and what I knew.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         22                 All right, it's obvious the reason

         23  why I was asking the question, because I think it's

         24  important that we not leave this hearing feeling

         25  that we have been told that there are no
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          2  negotiations going on with Bechtel. What we have

          3  been told is that you at DDC aren't in those

          4  negotiations, and I would request of the Mayor's

          5  Office of Legislative Affairs an answer to the

          6  question: Is the City of New York, is the Giuliani

          7  Administration, negotiating with Bechtel? If we

          8  could get that answer, since, you know, you don't

          9  know what others are doing, that would be very

         10  useful and perhaps even one of the most important

         11  points of the hearing that Council Member Perkins

         12  requested.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You know,

         14  it's interesting, I did have a conversation with the

         15  Administration about these negotiations and they

         16  were forthcoming and saying that a contract was

         17  imminent, so it seems sort of now as if there's a

         18  lot of ambiguity about this.

         19                 Everyone in the City seems to be

         20  aware of the imminence of this Bechtel contract, not

         21  simply by virtue of the reports, but in some

         22  conversations with the Administration, and I'm now

         23  wondering, are these negotiations going into sort of

         24  the deep throat secretive stage for some reason.

         25                 What is the reason for this to be so
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          2  hidden, is what I'm concerned about. It sounds too

          3  secretive.

          4                 Sorry.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: It's okay.

          6                 MR. HOOKER: It's not a question I can

          7  answer.

          8                 What I should say, though, is since

          9  the very beginning of this disaster, we received

         10  proposals, offers of expertise of staff, we had

         11  people from Texas telling us how to fight fires. We

         12  had people from California offering bacterial

         13  solutions for sludge clean-up. We had everything.

         14  All of those things were referred to the command

         15  centered Office of Emergency Management, whoever

         16  might have expertise to look at these proposals and

         17  see if they had validity?

         18                 I would see Bechtel as just another

         19  one of those, something that's being considered, but

         20  I don't know to what extent it's considered

         21  seriously.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: No, I'm

         23  telling you the Office of Legislative Affairs told

         24  me that a contract with Bechtel was imminent.

         25                 In fact, I was told with such
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          2  assurance that I wasn't sure if this hearing would

          3  take place before the contract was actually signed.

          4                 I remember saying, gee, when is this

          5  hearing coming, vis-a-vis the sense I got of when

          6  the contract was going to be signed.

          7                 So, it just seems strange that

          8  there's no forthcomingness about this contract.

          9  What's wrong with this contract? Do you understand

         10  --

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I understand the

         12  question, but as I explained, I haven't seen a

         13  proposal, I haven't seen a contract, I don't know

         14  the extent and I don't know where the negotiations

         15  are. If there are ongoing negotiations, they are not

         16  happening with the Department of Design and

         17  Construction ACCO's office, and that's my role.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Just to go back

         19  to the point you just made about, you know, requests

         20  that came in being forwarded to the Office of

         21  Emergency Management or to the Command Center.

         22                 Are you saying that if a company like

         23  Bechtel called and said we would like to -- you

         24  know, we're a for-profit company, et cetera, et

         25  cetera, after we get out of the, you know, emergency
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          2  week, we would like to engage in a contract to do X,

          3  Y and Z; are you saying that's the same thing as,

          4  you know, the Houston Fire Department calling and

          5  offering us resources for free?

          6                 MR. HOOKER: Again, I don't know what

          7  Bechtel has proposed, and what relationship they

          8  would have.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, no, no.

         10                 But you're saying --

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I'm saying that we got

         12  all level of requests to aid and bring expertise.

         13                 If there's something that Bechtel

         14  thinks they can bring to this project that's unique

         15  and different, then perhaps that's being considered.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But I guess my

         17  question is, from what I heard you -- I took from

         18  what you said that offers of free help from other

         19  cities and their agencies or other states get

         20  referred to the Command Center, and then a request

         21  from Bechtel to participate in work for which they

         22  would get paid got referred to the Command Center;

         23  so my question is, do offers of free service from

         24  other governments, are they treated -- is a Bechtel

         25  contract or something of that nature treated and
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          2  vetted in the same way as an offer of free resources

          3  from another government?

          4                 MR. HOOKER: Well, the offers that I

          5  was trying to explain, I don't believe were intended

          6  to be free. We were not looking at the financial

          7  aspect. They were more towards different kinds of

          8  expertise. People who fight oil well fires and that

          9  sort of thing were interested in bringing their

         10  expertise to a site where we had a smouldering fire

         11  that didn't ever seem to want to go away, and more

         12  of that sort of thing.

         13                 Again, I can't address the Bechtel

         14  proposal because I have not seen it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         16                 Just one last question, and I swear

         17  this is last, what is the -- you know, if there is,

         18  in fact, a contract with a Bechtel or something, one

         19  thing that obviously the Council would want to look

         20  at and that the citizens of New York would want to

         21  know is whether, among many other things whether

         22  that contract was going to cost us more than we are

         23  now paying for the very qualified people at DDC who

         24  all have agreed are doing an outstanding job,

         25  whether we're going to pay more than we are now
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          2  paying. That's not the only thing.

          3                 So, tell me, if you could, an

          4  estimate of how much we have spent or planned to

          5  spend, what the total we think we will pay

          6  presently, you know, for the City workers who are

          7  doing the work? What's the total cost to the

          8  taxpayer?

          9                 MR. HOOKER: Well, the contracts that

         10  were negotiated with the four CMs, had a not to

         11  exceed of $250 million a piece, or a total of a

         12  billion dollars. To date the City has paid out I

         13  think $30 million to each, so we're talking about

         14  120 million versus almost a billion dollars.

         15                 A lot of that has to do with the

         16  uncertainty of the project, and because of weather

         17  considerations we're moving much faster.

         18                 Whether we ever would have approached

         19  the $250 million per contractor, I'm not sure

         20  anybody will ever know.

         21                 That's the way the contracts were

         22  structured, they could encompass whatever was

         23  required.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: But Does that

         25  include -- I'm sorry, I may be missing something. Do
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          2  those contract amounts, that doesn't include like

          3  the City workers?

          4                 MR. HOOKER: No. I mean, you were

          5  asking me what it was going to cost taxpayers, City

          6  workers --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No, no.

          8                 MR. HOOKER: -- Are another component.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I'm sorry, I

         10  think I wasn't clear. I just want to know how much

         11  we're paying the City workers, the engineers, the

         12  DDC folks, not the law enforcement or firefighters;

         13  how much are we paying --

         14                 MR. HOOKER: Yes, I understand your

         15  question now. I would have to get back to you on

         16  that. I wouldn't know right off.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay. That

         18  would be great. Thank you.

         19                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And also,

         21  again, I just want to thank your agency and please

         22  let your workers know on the site how grateful all

         23  of us on the City Council are for their very

         24  outstanding and hard and dangerous work.

         25                 MR. HOOKER: I appreciate that. Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, just a

          4  couple of quick questions. Have you been working

          5  with the Port Authority, or with the Lower Manhattan

          6  Development Commission on any of these contracts?

          7                 MR. HOOKER: No. When I have been at

          8  Ground Zero, there are Port Authority engineers who

          9  are helping administer the four contractors that we

         10  have in place. It is a cooperative venture.

         11                 Whether they have had other emergency

         12  contracts that they have put in place I don't know,

         13  and I wouldn't really -- I wouldn't be involved in

         14  the process.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Are they actually,

         16  I mean is the contract with the City? Are we paying

         17  them?

         18                 MR. HOOKER: Speaking of the Port

         19  Authority? No.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: No, not the Port

         21  Authority, with the four contractors.

         22                 MR. HOOKER: These four contractors

         23  would be City contracts, yes. But we're presuming

         24  each of the contracts would be reimbursed by the

         25  federal government.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I mean, we went

          3  over it a little bit, with the emergency procedure

          4  --

          5                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Exactly how were

          7  they picked? Was it just that they were there? Was

          8  there any kind of bidding? Was there any kind of

          9  thought to how they were picked? I mean, I know you

         10  have to go through the emergency contracts, but how

         11  did you arrive at them?

         12                 MR. HOOKER: Well, I believe there was

         13  a great deal of thought, because there is a limited

         14  number of contractors who could have responded as

         15  quickly as these did.

         16                 Frank McArdle spoke of Tully who was

         17  on the site at the time of the disaster, because

         18  they were finishing up the lower part of Route 9A.

         19  So, they had men and equipment there.

         20                 They also had the wherewithal to

         21  sustain a payroll of several million dollars prior

         22  to getting compensation from the City or whatever

         23  entity will be paying it.

         24                 That was a key component. Each of the

         25  contractors had to have fairly deep pockets, if I
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          2  may put it that way, in order to bring people to the

          3  site, hire subcontractors as necessary, and be able

          4  to wait weeks or months to be paid for these

          5  services.

          6                 Each of these contracts also had

          7  laborers on their payroll so that they could be

          8  assigned very quickly to the project, which was also

          9  essential.

         10                 The fact that they were New York

         11  based, either with New York offices, or based, as

         12  Tully is, in the New York area, was also important.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But we are now

         14  paying them?

         15                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         17                 And are the subcontractors also being

         18  paid?

         19                 MR. HOOKER: Yes, they're being paid

         20  through the CNs. And the fact that these contractors

         21  are being paid, is an unprecedented cooperation with

         22  the Comptroller's Office, who is allowing these

         23  payments in advance of contracts is quite

         24  extraordinary and quite a measure of their

         25  cooperativeness.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: In fact, you're

          3  anticipating my next question. Because if they were

          4  hired under emergency contracts, the agency, your

          5  agency was required to get prior approval from both

          6  the Comptroller and the Corp Counsel --

          7                 MR. HOOKER: Right, which we did.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What kind of

          9  signoff did they give you?

         10                 Did they give you -- I guess define

         11  for me, was it on an individual contract basis? Did

         12  they sort of define it by anything that has to do

         13  with the September 11th occurrences, or which?

         14                 MR. HOOKER: We structured our request

         15  for emergency declaration just within the confines

         16  of what we saw our responsibilities to do, these

         17  four contractors to remove debris.

         18                 The Comptroller's Office typically

         19  would respond, as would the Law Department with a

         20  letter saying, okay, to that extent you can begin

         21  these contracts.

         22                 In this regard, because it was such a

         23  large disaster with such far reaching implications,

         24  they're response was somewhat broader, and it does

         25  allow agencies to engage whatever contracts are
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          2  necessary in order to move through the process.

          3                 Each needs still to be justified to

          4  the Comptroller's Office and the Corporation

          5  Counsel, and registered.

          6                 So, there's paper and there's

          7  explanations that are required before they be

          8  registered.

          9                 The Comptroller's Office is involved

         10  in a number of different steps.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But have the

         12  contracts been registered?

         13                 MR. HOOKER: No. The contracts have

         14  not been awarded or registered.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: So this has, as

         16  you said, been an extraordinary condition.

         17                 Do we have any idea like what the

         18  length of the contracts are, what they're envisioned

         19  to be, assuming we enter, you know, once we get them

         20  written?

         21                 MR. HOOKER: Contracts were intended

         22  to cover the emergency removal of debris. At the

         23  initial thought it was at least a year. The

         24  contracts were structured so they could last at

         25  least a year. It seems now that it will be less.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          3                 And I guess, so, when we get out of

          4  the emergency stage and when we get back into the

          5  regular contracting process, you were saying you

          6  envision that as when the removal is finished, is

          7  that sort of how you're defining it?

          8                 MR. HOOKER: It's my understanding

          9  that's the intention. Once the site is cleared of

         10  debris and is ready for reconstruction work, then

         11  that will be another phase, and that will not be

         12  necessarily covered under these contracts. There may

         13  be some shoring in order to make sure the site is

         14  safe for other contractors to come in, for whatever

         15  is decided to be the future of that site.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: What about the,

         17  what was it - was it the auditors had to be hired,

         18  there was the incidence where some of the steel

         19  work, shall we say, went north, and you -- in fact,

         20  a friend of mine actually literally saw it going up

         21  the turnpike, but anyway, what happened with that?

         22  Were you involved with those contracts to do

         23  additional oversight of the site itself?

         24                 MR. HOOKER: No. I knew of them. The

         25  Department of Investigation is administering a
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          2  contract with each of the CNs in order to keep an

          3  aye on the subcontractors, the payments and to make

          4  sure they're working successfully.

          5                 It's not unusual for a large

          6  construction project to have such a monitor, and it

          7  did seem to make sense in this regard.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Yes, do you know

          9  what those contracts were for? The amount, how much

         10  it -- what was the cost?

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I don't know the

         12  specifics, because they were negotiated with the

         13  Department of Investigation, not DDC, and they

         14  administer those contracts.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And they were done

         16  under the emergency rules also, or was there some

         17  competitive bidding?

         18                 MR. HOOKER: I expect so. I didn't see

         19  the letters requesting approval, but I would expect

         20  that's the case. They are part of the construction

         21  endeavor.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: As far as the

         23  ongoing contracts, such as like rubble removal, and

         24  this is where the personal interest, I suppose,

         25  comes in also, you may know that there have been a
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          2  number of complaints from both the residents right

          3  by the barge where the rubble removal was being

          4  done, and by the schools about the failure to follow

          5  some of the protocols, and I'm wondering, has DDC

          6  been involved in that, have you looked at, relooked

          7  at some of these contracts, vis-a-vis, or lack of

          8  contracts with the procedure, vis-a-vis

          9  environmental impacts? Because that is one of the

         10  things we're very concerned about.

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I have not been a part of

         12  that discussion. I'm sure that would take place by

         13  the Emergency Management team down there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I don't know, they

         15  won't meet with us.

         16                 MR. HOOKER: Oh. Yes, that would not

         17  be an aspect that I would normally be involved in.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, because if

         19  there is a problem, we're told DDC is in control of

         20  some of these contracts, but who do we go to?

         21                 If there is a problem with any of

         22  these --

         23                 MR. HOOKER: I can take that specific

         24  question back and find out what the answer is, but

         25  I'm not prepared to answer that, and I wouldn't have
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          2  known normally.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But if there is,

          4  for instance, if there are environmental concerns

          5  with some of these contracts --

          6                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: How do we get them

          8  answered, because since we're not even doing the

          9  regular contracting process, it wouldn't have come

         10  out obviously in any of the bidding process itself

         11  or any of the concerns.

         12                 So, especially now that we are three

         13  months away from, almost three months away from the

         14  actual event, so that some of the concerns that were

         15  there in the first couple of weeks, while we're

         16  still doing rubble removal, the fact is that the

         17  technology and the way it's done and the procedures

         18  haven't changed at all, and yet it seems to me we

         19  should be in another phase. So, how do we get those

         20  looked at? What happens with those contracts or the

         21  lack thereof?

         22                 MR. HOOKER: All I can say is I will

         23  get back to you with how that is intended to be

         24  addressed, whether there will be a forum for

         25  community comment, I don't really know.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, there hasn't

          3  been so far. In fact, we've specifically been told

          4  there isn't one, and I have to say that while on one

          5  hand everyone understands the problems with the

          6  devastation, there is the ongoing concern of the

          7  downtown community where no one is listening to us,

          8  and some of these are things that would be easily

          9  enough accomplished, if there were a contract, and

         10  some of the things that could be done with the

         11  contracts that now exist that would make life a lot

         12  easier for us, and, yet, we have no one to talk to,

         13  and because of the vacuum out there, including with

         14  yourself, because I know we provided you with many

         15  of these questions ahead of time, and, you know,

         16  there is a little bit of frustration up here in that

         17  we're not getting a lot of answers to our questions.

         18                 MR. HOOKER: All I can really tell you

         19  is I'll take that question back and see what

         20  intention there is --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, understand

         22  that you were the person the Administration sent to

         23  us. They knew the questions that we were going to

         24  have, so to an extent, and this is no reflection on

         25  you, because if it's outside of your purview, it's
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          2  outside of your purview, but on the other hand, you

          3  excuse us if we look at that as, well, maybe that's

          4  why you were sent here. To be less than subtle.

          5                 Council Member Rodriguez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair.

          8                 I may ask one of those questions you

          9  were talking about, though. I just have to take a

         10  few steps back.

         11                 MR. HOOKER: Fine.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: DDC, okay,

         13  the responsibilities of DDC at Ground Zero, can you

         14  tell me what they were from September 11th til now?

         15                 MR. HOOKER: They were to assist the

         16  Fire Department, the federal agencies, in removal of

         17  debris to rescue, at first, and to recover remains,

         18  and that has been our scope of work ever since.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And how

         20  many people do you have employed there?

         21                 MR. HOOKER: Actual number of DDC?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes, of

         23  your DDC employees.

         24                 MR. HOOKER: I don't know, but I can

         25  get back to you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:

          3  Approximately. Hundreds, thousands, millions?

          4                 MR. HOOKER: No, it's certainly not

          5  that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Ten?

          7                 MR. HOOKER: I would say there are

          8  probably, since we're working 24 hours a day, seven

          9  days a week, there's probably a team of about six to

         10  eight individuals who are monitoring each contract.

         11  Plus we have our administrative people and our

         12  Commissioner out there. I would say we're talking

         13  about 30 people probably.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: About 30

         15  people. Okay.

         16                 And they would be architects,

         17  engineers, supervisors; do you know who is there?

         18  You know more about DDC than I do, just tell me who

         19  would be there?

         20                 MR. HOOKER: They are architects and

         21  they are construction personnel.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And they're

         23  engineers?

         24                 MR. HOOKER: And they're engineers as

         25  well.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay, and

          3  that's the number of people. You're saying 30

          4  maximum? You think about 30 people?

          5                 MR. HOOKER: That would be my guess,

          6  but I can provide you with a more specific number.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay. And

          8  again, I'm taking a few steps back.

          9                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, why

         11  were you guys brought in? Why was it important for

         12  DDC to be there? Why didn't they bring in, you know,

         13  Sanitation Department or someone else?

         14                 MR. HOOKER: I'm only speculating. DDC

         15  is the construction agency for New York City. We

         16  have been brought in in other emergency situations.

         17  We responded when the deck collapsed at Yankee

         18  Stadium. We've been there, we have the ability to

         19  respond very quickly. I think we demonstrated that

         20  we could, even in an event as large as this.

         21                 Outside of that, I can't explain the

         22  motive.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         24                 MR. HOOKER: The Mayor asked us to

         25  take action, we took action.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, if I

          3  was the Mayor of New York City, I would bring in DDC

          4  to do this type of work, because that's the agency

          5  that does this type of work, right? I just want to

          6  make sure of that, unless you were suggesting some

          7  other things.

          8                 And you think that DDC has done a

          9  good job up until now?

         10                 MR. HOOKER: I believe so, yes. An

         11  excellent job.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You think

         13  the workers have done an good job?

         14                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Okay.

         16                 If the City were to contract for

         17  anything that DDC had responsibility over, would

         18  that be your job to negotiate that contract?

         19                 MR. HOOKER: It would depend on the

         20  entity. If it was something that DDC was doing, I

         21  would be involved in it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right.

         23                 So, if right now there were a

         24  contract being negotiated with Bechtel, for the sake

         25  of discussion, or any company, that was going to DDC
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          2  workers, the normal protocol is that you would be

          3  involved in that contract?

          4                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Am I right?

          6                 MR. HOOKER: Yes. That's right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you're

          8  saying, or you testified here, that you're not

          9  involved in any contract with anyone to replace any

         10  DDC employees you know of?

         11                 MR. HOOKER: That's right. But, again,

         12  this is not a traditional construction project.

         13  There are other entities at the federal level, the

         14  state level and the City. It's not a strictly City

         15  contract.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. But

         17  normally speaking --

         18                 MR. HOOKER: Normally, yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Any

         20  construction project that the City was involved in,

         21  you would do the negotiations?

         22                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you

         24  don't know anything about any other negotiations

         25  with any other companies that only the ones that you
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          2  know about?

          3                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you

          5  don't know anything about any other negotiations

          6  with any other companies that, only the ones that

          7  you know about?

          8                 MR. HOOKER: Those are the only ones

          9  I've been --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So then we

         11  can assume that those are extraordinary

         12  circumstances, if they should be going on?

         13                 MR. HOOKER: Yes, I expect that.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And they're

         15  not following the normal course of business?

         16                 MR. HOOKER: I don't know that normal

         17  works in this particular instance. There is nothing

         18  normal --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I'm just

         20  trying to see if in fact --

         21                 MR. HOOKER: If such a thing is

         22  happening, it's extraordinary.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right. If

         24  this Administration is being honest and fair with

         25  the people of the City of New York, right? And I'm
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          2  trying to see if in fact this Administration is

          3  following the rules and the laws of New York City.

          4  And, yes, on September 11th, there were

          5  circumstances that had to be negotiated, emergency

          6  contracts. The question that is before us now is,

          7  are we still in that circumstance and should these

          8  contracts still be out there, and I just want it to

          9  be clear, that your agency or your Department hasn't

         10  played a role in something that you described before

         11  was a normal function of your agency, I thought; am

         12  I right?

         13                 MR. HOOKER: Right. But, again, not to

         14  my knowledge. If there have been discussions --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Well, who

         16  would have knowledge of this? Because I don't have

         17  knowledge of this, I don't think Council Member

         18  Freed has knowledge; who would have this knowledge?

         19                 MR. HOOKER: I would think this would

         20  be the Mayor's Office, Legislative Affairs might --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And what's

         22  your title again?

         23                 MR. HOOKER: I'm the Agency Chief

         24  Contracting Officer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, you're
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          2  the Agency Chief Contracting Officer for DDC. So, I

          3  would assume, it's just me --

          4                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I would

          6  assume that you would have a lot of knowledge about

          7  construction contracts in New York City. Just me, am

          8  I right? Probably more than anyone else?

          9                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: More than

         11  someone at the Mayor's Office? More than most people

         12  at the Mayor's Office, except for Rudy himself? He

         13  knows everything. He's all knowing, we know that.

         14  But other than Rudy --

         15                 MR. HOOKER: Well, the way I need to

         16  answer that is DDC has certain client groups, we're

         17  very aware of what those client groups' requirements

         18  are.

         19                 I'm not as aware of what Sanitation

         20  is doing or DEP is doing upstate, or what their

         21  plans. We have a certain kind of project that's

         22  assigned to us, and I'm very aware of those

         23  projects.

         24                 I don't follow the state bidding, I

         25  don't follow the federal bidding, I have enough to
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          2  do with the Department of Design and Construction

          3  where we have about 1,000 projects ongoing at any

          4  given time. I have not been involved in any

          5  discussions with Bechtel. I don't know at what level

          6  these discussions may be taking place.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I'm not

          8  even talking about Bechtel, I'm talking about any

          9  contract that's taking place anywhere that would

         10  replace DDC employees, right?

         11                 If that was happening you would think

         12  that you know about that?

         13                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And I would

         15  think that you should know about that. And I think

         16  that that's why we're here, to make sure that -- so

         17  then there is no reason for us to think it's

         18  happening. There's no reason for anyone in New York

         19  City or anyone watching on TV to think that there's

         20  any contract going on that would replace DDC

         21  employees because you're not aware of it, and you

         22  are the ACCO?

         23                 MR. HOOKER: Chief Contracting

         24  Officer.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Chief
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          2  Contracting Officer, right? So you would know.

          3                 MR. HOOKER: Yes, I would know if we

          4  were engaged in the negotiations.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: So, the

          6  information given to Council Member Perkins that he

          7  heard, that there was an imminent contract, was

          8  incorrect, based on what you know.

          9                 MR. HOOKER: All I can answer is I

         10  have not --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: No, based

         12  on what you know. Based on what you know.

         13                 MR. HOOKER: Based on what I know --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: That's an

         15  incorrect statement.

         16                 MR. HOOKER: I have not negotiated any

         17  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And you

         19  don't know about it. You don't know of any contract?

         20                 MR. HOOKER: I have not seen a

         21  proposal --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You haven't

         23  heard of any contract?

         24                 MR. HOOKER: I have --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: And --
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          2                 MR. HOOKER: I have heard of it

          3  because I've read about it in the paper.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Right, but

          5  you haven't really heard of it.

          6                 And no contracts should take place

          7  without knowing about it, because you're the person

          8  at DDC that does this job?

          9                 MR. HOOKER: For DDC, but that doesn't

         10  mean --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I

         12  understand.

         13                 MR. HOOKER:-- That there won't be a

         14  Port Authority or a New York contractor -- I mean,

         15  there are other possibilities.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Are there

         17  any other possibilities -- how long have you been in

         18  this job?

         19                 MR. HOOKER: I've been in this job

         20  since early 1997.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: 1997.

         22                 Have you ever had any other

         23  circumstance in which there was something where DDC

         24  was the agency in charge of the project, and the

         25  Mayor's Office or any other agency, came and said
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          2  let's have someone else negotiate the contract? So,

          3  this would be just an extraordinary circumstance. I

          4  guess billion dollar contracts are extraordinary

          5  circumstances.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 MR. HOOKER: Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          9                 By the way, let me just state for the

         10  record that we did tell the Administration what this

         11  hearing was about. We made several requests as to

         12  which agencies they sent, or who they sent, and they

         13  sent us DDC.

         14                 Again, nothing against you, but it

         15  might have been helpful if several other of the

         16  agencies who might have been able to answer our

         17  questions were actually here.

         18                 Council Member Miller.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you,

         20  Madam Chair.

         21                 Actually, that was the question that

         22  I wanted to ask, and I wanted to sort of make a

         23  comment, which is that it seems to me that, Mr.

         24  Hooker, you've sort of been thrown to the wolves in

         25  this case. You know, you specifically don't have
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          2  knowledge for the subject at which we wanted to be

          3  able to ask you, and, so, you can't answer to it, so

          4  I don't want to belabor the point further on the

          5  subject at which you can't answer.

          6                 I wonder, though, whether there is

          7  somebody from the Office of Legislative Affairs who

          8  could answer a question as to why it was you were

          9  chosen to testify on this hearing, given that there

         10  was not a mystery as to what the hearing was about,

         11  and that you quite clearly don't have any knowledge

         12  of the issue which we want to ask you about. And I'm

         13  very respectful, that, you know, I appreciate your

         14  forthrightness and directness in responding.

         15                 Is there anybody from the

         16  Administration who could tell us how the process

         17  was, the selection in this testimony?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, there is

         19  someone here from Legislative Affairs. She is

         20  standing next to Jefferson over there.

         21                 Linda, do you want to address the --

         22  would you like to comment?

         23                 MR. HOOKER: I received a list of

         24  handwritten questions which I got over the

         25  telephone, they had to do with outreach to minority
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          2  groups, they had to do with indemnification, they

          3  had to do with monitors, things that I am aware of.

          4                 There was a question about Bechtel. I

          5  don't presume to have all the answers to all your

          6  questions --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I understand

          8  that fully. I understand that fully. I'm not

          9  attempting to say that there isn't a number of

         10  things that you shed light on, I'm just pointing out

         11  that the particular one was quite obviously, and I

         12  think communicated quite directly, to be of

         13  particular interest in this case. It's curious, or

         14  maybe not curious, that you're not able to speak to

         15  it.

         16                 With the things that you can speak

         17  to, let me just very briefly then ask this question,

         18  because I think my colleagues have done a good job

         19  in getting a number of that information from you.

         20                 Let me just see if I understand, DDC

         21  is overseeing these contracts, and if there were to

         22  be a contract that were to be negotiated by some

         23  other entity, not yourself, to do the overseeing of

         24  the contracts, such as has been reported in the

         25  press, and I know you've seen the same reports in
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          2  the press that we've seen with regard to the

          3  possibility of Bechtel coming in, the employees at

          4  DDC who are currently doing this work, would

          5  presumably no longer be doing the work. Because the

          6  City is not in the practice of having two entities

          7  doing the same thing, right?

          8                 MR. HOOKER:  I would agree that the

          9  City would not have two entities doing the same

         10  thing.

         11                 Having not seen the Bechtel proposal,

         12  I don't know that they are --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: What you're

         14  saying is that currently DDC is doing the oversight

         15  on this contract?

         16                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And if

         18  somebody were brought in from outside to do the

         19  oversight on this contract, we can assume that DDC

         20  will no longer be doing the oversight on the

         21  contract. So, the employees that are currently doing

         22  this work, we were or are operating under the

         23  assumption that we're going to be reimbursed by the

         24  federal government for those employees' --

         25                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:-- Time, and

          3  the cost of this effort, right?

          4                 So that it seems to me, and assumedly

          5  if these employees are not doing this work, they'll

          6  still remain on DDC staff, right?

          7                 MR. HOOKER: Yes, all these employees

          8  were assigned to other projects prior to the

          9  disaster, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         11                 So, actually then, whatever the cost

         12  of this contract for Bechtel, this will actually

         13  cost the City whatever that -- more than that,

         14  because it doesn't matter how much we're paying for

         15  it, and how much we're going to pay Bechtel,

         16  actually from our point of view we're paying nothing

         17  for it, because we're being reimbursed by the

         18  federal government, and, in fact, we're going to now

         19  pay an outside contractor any nickel that we pay

         20  them is money that we wouldn't have had to pay

         21  otherwise because we're being reimbursed for City

         22  employees who are already on staff and who are going

         23  to remain on staff, whether they're doing this work

         24  or not, and presumably will be going to do work that

         25  they can't be reimbursed by the federal government
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          2  for, is that not correct? That would be a safe

          3  assumption, right?

          4                 MR. HOOKER: I think that's a safe

          5  assumption, but part of that assumption is that

          6  another entity would not be reimbursed for their

          7  costs as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: No, no. I

          9  don't think it is part of that assumption, because

         10  what I'm saying is, is that currently there are

         11  people on DDC, who are doing, by your testimony and

         12  I think by common agreement, an outstanding job on

         13  this project, and we're -- the City is paying for

         14  them because they work for the City. But we're not

         15  really paying for them because we're being

         16  reimbursed by the federal government for them.

         17                 If the City were to negotiate with

         18  some outside contractor to do the same work that DDC

         19  is paying, we're still going to be paying our City

         20  employees, but we're no longer going to be

         21  reimbursed by the federal government.

         22                 So that at a time of serious fiscal

         23  crisis that we're in right now, in which the Mayor

         24  just gave us a budget modification in which part of

         25  the way that he's helping to solve this fiscal
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          2  crisis is by shifting the cost of current City

          3  employees.

          4                 For example, I understand, and I

          5  haven't had as much time to review the budget

          6  modification as I'd like, but I understand that, you

          7  know, we're getting the federal government to

          8  reimburse us for some of the costs of the Police

          9  Department time, which they would be there anyway.

         10  But it's actually saving us money because we can

         11  build a federal government for it, because the

         12  police officers that are doing work in the area of

         13  this terrible, terrible tragedy, were getting

         14  reimbursed by the federal government. So, the thing

         15  that I'm particularly concerned about is, I don't

         16  understand what the motivation -- fiscally this

         17  seems to be an extremely irresponsible thing to do.

         18                 We have a fiscal crisis. We have City

         19  employees who we can actually get reimbursed for

         20  their time by the federal government, and we're

         21  going to take them and put them on a different

         22  project, where they are no longer going to get

         23  reimbursed by the federal government, and we're

         24  going to pay somebody else the money to do it. That,

         25  to me, seems crazy.
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          2                 The only thing that I want to just

          3  establish from you is, it is the case that DDC

          4  employees are being -- for the time that they're

          5  spending on this project, are currently, we expect

          6  to be reimbursed by the federal government, right?

          7                 MR. HOOKER: I have every expectation

          8  that that is the case.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And there are

         10  no other projects -- if we shift our DDC employees

         11  to other projects, there are none other projects

         12  that we're currently figuring that these people will

         13  be reimbursed by the federal government under FEMA

         14  funds, right?

         15                 Are you aware of any?

         16                 MR. HOOKER: I'm not aware of any

         17  other DDC projects --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay. So, then

         19  it would seem to me that one plus one equals two

         20  here, and every nickel that we spend on some private

         21  contractor doing this work is a nickel and a dime

         22  and a dollar and tens of thousands of dollars, and

         23  ultimately reportedly millions of dollars, that this

         24  City is losing at a time of fiscal crisis, and I

         25  would just say that I think that that's why my
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          2  colleague, Council Member Perkins and the Chair,

          3  wanted to have a hearing on this subject, and it

          4  would have been great if we could have had somebody

          5  who could have more directly addressed the contracts

          6  being considered.

          7                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Council Member

          9  Quinn.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 When DDC, or the City for that

         12  matter, engages in contracts with companies, do we,

         13  it seems round about, but trust me, I'll get back to

         14  where we are, do we check their past records as it

         15  relates to labor practices, as it relates to human

         16  rights issues, as it relates to whether they've been

         17  investigated by other states or cities or the

         18  federal government?

         19                 MR. HOOKER: Oh, absolutely, yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: So would the

         21  fact that, for the record, I'm looking at a July

         22  1st, 2000 Internet printout of an article from the

         23  Boston Globe, in which I'll just read a brief part

         24  of it, "Big Dig officials knew they may have been

         25  violating the City's prevailing wage law by
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          2  underpaying truckers more than three years before

          3  they were forced to add 20 million to the project's

          4  already ballooning budget, A copy of an internal Big

          5  Dig memo attained by the Globe indicates.

          6                 The 1993 memo appears to contradict

          7  statements made by project officials that they were

          8  unaware of the issue until 1996, when truckers

          9  complained publicly."

         10                 Now, Bechtel was the company who was

         11  doing that work. Would such behavior and such

         12  underpayment in Boston render Bechtel, if there is

         13  in fact negotiations going on with Bechtel, would

         14  such an egregious violation render them unable to

         15  even bid? Render them so they couldn't get the

         16  contract? There's a word there I can't think of but

         17  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ:

         19  Unqualified.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Unqualified.

         21  Thank you, Angel.

         22                 Would such an egregious violation

         23  render them unqualified for this contract, for such

         24  a contract?

         25                 MR. HOOKER: Well, it might. I didn't
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          2  hear it in what you read that they had been charged,

          3  or convicted or found guilty of this, only that they

          4  had been charged with.

          5                 Prevailing wages is certainly

          6  something the City takes very seriously. The

          7  Comptroller undertakes investigations all the time.

          8  If companies are found to be willfully violating

          9  prevailing wages, then they are typically debarred

         10  for a period.

         11                 If there was a debar, similar

         12  procedure up in the Boston area and they were

         13  debarred for a period, that is something we could

         14  certainly be concerned about and would look at as we

         15  would look at all things having to do with past

         16  court actions or criminal actions or any kind of --

         17  yes, that's something that would be reviewed prior.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: In the article,

         19  and I'm happy to give you and whoever is negotiating

         20  with Bechtel a copy, the officials acknowledgment

         21  the underpayment.

         22                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And in fact,

         24  they not only acknowledge it, our funds were, you

         25  know, additional funds were allocated to close the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  shortfall, so I think that's clearly and admission.

          3                 MR. HOOKER: An admission?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: An admission,

          5  yes. Even more than an admission.

          6                 So, if this is in fact true, which it

          7  seems to be, based on the Boston Globe, that would

          8  very likely render Bechtel unqualified, knocked them

          9  out of the box, if you will, as it relates to this

         10  contract that we have seen discussed in the papers?

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I can't say that one

         12  issue would do it, it's my responsibility, and

         13  others in my role at other agencies to look at, this

         14  is the entire history of the contract, especially

         15  its recent history of a contract or a consulting

         16  firm to see where they are.

         17                 There are very large firms that have

         18  multiple OSHA violations, but they engage in

         19  multiple of projects, so you have to look at a

         20  number of aspects.

         21                 Whether that would be enough to

         22  declare Bechtel a non-responsible contractor, I

         23  couldn't say.

         24                 I would have to look at their entire

         25  performance and integrity history.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Well, let me

          3  just -- I mean, for the record, I am very interested

          4  in the Administration reviewing the information

          5  which led to this article and another article I'm

          6  going to mention, and reviewing, perhaps more

          7  aggressively, if they are in fact reviewing, the

          8  past history of Bechtel. I very much appreciate your

          9  offer to do that research. I would actually, though,

         10  in addition, like whoever it is, or whatever office

         11  that is actually engaged in the negotiations, to do

         12  it as well, since you are not engaged in

         13  negotiations with them.

         14                 And then just also for the record, in

         15  a May 10th, 2000, article from the San Francisco

         16  Chronicle, and these were charges levied, I don't

         17  know what the final outcome was, there were charges

         18  levied that Bechtel had been violating Human Rights

         19  laws and the Domestic Partnership laws and

         20  regulations of the City of San Francisco.

         21                 Once again this paper article only

         22  talks about them being levied, I don't know the

         23  outcome but we should certainly look into whether in

         24  fact they were found guilty of violating Human

         25  Rights law, or Domestic Partnership laws, which are
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          2  both Human Rights laws, and very clearly,

          3  labor-related laws because it deals to, you know,

          4  insurance, et cetera.

          5                 MR. HOOKER: Okay.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

          7                 And if you could follow up with the

          8  chair, and then she'll get it to me, on what the

          9  formal review of Bechtel practices yielded, I would

         10  very much appreciate that.

         11                 MR. HOOKER: Well, again, I haven't

         12  done any such review, because as far as I know, DDC

         13  is not entering into a contract with Bechtel.

         14                 Should they become a proposed

         15  contractor, then I would do a thorough review.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I guess --

         17                 MR. HOOKER: The reason I somewhat

         18  hedge is because one of the ways that review is

         19  initiated is a contractor is asked to fill out

         20  VENDEX questionnaires that tell all their partners,

         21  all their ownership, all their associations --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

         23                 MR. HOOKER: And it's through those

         24  tax ID numbers --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Right.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            121

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2                 MR. HOOKER: -- And Social Security

          3  numbers that we undertake an investigation. I

          4  wouldn't have that information. We have not asked

          5  for it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I was operating

          7  under the assumption, and I might be wrong, that you

          8  and the Office of Legislative Affairs would leave

          9  this hearing and forward that request to whoever it

         10  is in the Administration who is reviewing their

         11  VENDEX forms. If that is not the appropriate

         12  protocol, then I would assume that the Chair on

         13  behalf of the Committee would make that request

         14  formerly to the Mayor, but I had hoped in an effort

         15  to clearly reflect the sentiments of this Committee

         16  and to speed things along, that you in the Office of

         17  Legislative Affairs could, you know, verbally make

         18  that request on our behalf and then we would follow

         19  up.

         20                 MR. HOOKER: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just a quick

         23  question on that.

         24                 If DDC weren't the agency negotiating

         25  for the contracts, who else would it be?
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          2                 MR. HOOKER: Again, you're asking me a

          3  question that I just don't know the answer to.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Well, I guess the

          5  real question is, given the fact that you did the

          6  other contracts for this area, doesn't it follow

          7  that it would be your agency that did these

          8  contracts? So if someone were out there negotiating

          9  on them or thinking about it, wouldn't it be your

         10  agency? Wouldn't it be DDC?

         11                 MR. HOOKER: I don't think that you

         12  can necessarily reach that conclusion. DDC is one

         13  agency we've been asked to address this problem - we

         14  have.

         15                 If things are happening at a higher

         16  level that I've not been involved in, it's very

         17  possible but I wouldn't be able to answer that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         19                 Council Member Perkins.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I'm going to

         21  just make a quick statement because I think this

         22  Administration has clearly blocked our opportunity

         23  to understand what the contracting is that's going

         24  on down there, and what the special contract

         25  arrangements that are being made with Bechtel. It's
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          2  clear that you're a victim of this as well, and I

          3  don't want you to take it the wrong way.

          4                 Did you know that you were coming to

          5  be asked questions that you didn't know the answers

          6  to?

          7                 MR. HOOKER: Well, I didn't know the

          8  subject of the hearing was so profoundly on this one

          9  particular issue. It was one of a dozen questions I

         10  was given, and I have answered to the others that

         11  don't seem to be quite as relevant.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I think

         13  you've been as forthcoming as possible, you have

         14  been, and quite the opposite has unfortunately been

         15  the case with the Administration, because these

         16  questions, these concerns were very explicitly

         17  shared with the Administration so that they could be

         18  prepared to spend the appropriate representation to

         19  add to the questions.

         20                 And, so, I'd like to suggest to the

         21  Chair that we have to go and get the right people

         22  from the Administration for a second round, if

         23  necessary, so that the public can be clear about

         24  what it's getting into, since the World Trade Center

         25  is really going to be a focus point of so much of
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          2  what happens in this City for the next few years,

          3  and it wouldn't hurt for the people of the City to

          4  know exactly what's going to be going on down there.

          5                 But it does hurt when there seems to

          6  be purposeful stonewalling or lack of cooperation in

          7  sharing that information on a project that's going

          8  to take many, many years of time and money related

          9  to the City.

         10                 So, I would suggest we just try to

         11  get the Administration here another time to answer

         12  these questions, and shed some light on some of

         13  these concerns.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         15                 And let me just add that it will

         16  look, shall I suggest, very bad if tomorrow or in

         17  the next week we suddenly read in the paper that

         18  Bechtel has suddenly taken over, because that will

         19  certainly also reflect badly I think on the

         20  Administration, or what I would have hoped would

         21  have been an atmosphere of working together and

         22  really sharing and being very forthcoming and

         23  forthright on all these issues.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You know, I

         25  would think that even the in-coming Mayor would
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          2  appreciate knowing the answers to some of these

          3  questions, because after all is said and done, it's

          4  under his Administration, at least the first four

          5  years of it, that he's going to have to live with

          6  these decisions.

          7                 Now, we did, by the way, invite the

          8  Mayor elect to the hearing, if he wanted to

          9  participate or whatever, but I'm just saying it

         10  would seem to me that we all need to know what's

         11  going on.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And also, the

         13  possibility of transferring the contract to another

         14  agency that might not be under the control of the

         15  in-coming Administration, I think really would, you

         16  know, kind of hobble them as well, and we would hate

         17  to see that happen because with a new Administration

         18  coming in, we would like them to have some kind of

         19  input on what's going on and some control on the

         20  City's part in particular.

         21                 Anyway, but thank you.

         22                 MR. HOOKER: You're welcome.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         24                 If anyone is here for the Parks

         25  meeting, the Parks meeting will be meeting
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          2  downstairs in the Green Room, that's on the first

          3  floor. Downstairs, back this way.

          4                 The next panel will be James

          5  Heyliger, from the Leadership Council, Jim Haughton,

          6  from Fight Back, and Jeffrey Ferguson, from

          7  Organizations in the Street. And the union panel

          8  will be next.

          9                 If people have handouts, please just

         10  give them to the Sergeants-At-Arms. Are we missing

         11  someone? Did they leave? Okay.

         12                 Okay, if you gentlemen would all

         13  raise your right hands, please.

         14                 And do you swear to tell the truth,

         15  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         16                 MR. HEYLIGER: I do.

         17                 MR. HAUGHTON: I do.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: I do.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Make sure that the

         20  microphone, that the red light is off, because the

         21  system is on when the light is off. Don't ask.

         22                 Okay, so if you would proceed. The

         23  first person please just state your name, your

         24  position, and then go ahead.

         25                 MR. HAUGHTON: Jim Haughton. I'm the
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          2  Director of Fight Back. We've been around 40 years

          3  fighting racism in the New York City construction

          4  industry.

          5                 Let me say from the very beginning,

          6  it was bad then, and it is bad now, and probably

          7  even worse than it was when we got started.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: Jeff Ferguson from the

         10  Building Blocks. We basically are a brand new

         11  organization. We've been around for about a year and

         12  a half, and basically with reference to jobless

         13  people looking for work.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

         15                 And?

         16                 MR. HEYLIGER: The name is James

         17  Heyliger. I'm the president of the Association of

         18  Minority Enterprises of New York. Today, however, I

         19  am testifying on behalf of the Minority Business

         20  Leadership Council, which is a three-year old

         21  organization. My organization is a 25-year-old

         22  association.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, do you want

         24  to go?

         25                 MR. HAUGHTON: I could be very brief.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            128

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  I have given members of the Council Committee a

          3  statement of what's really needed.

          4                 Let me just say for 40 years I've

          5  come to hearings at this City Council, more or less

          6  talking on the same issue of the racism, systemic

          7  racism in the industry, practically to no avail,

          8  because nothing really has been done to change that.

          9                 There was a little spark of hope

         10  during the early sixties of the Civil Rights

         11  Movement, and there was in place an effective

         12  governmental affirmative action program, but since

         13  that time that program has disappeared, and the

         14  industry now is knee deep in nepotism and cronyism.

         15                 There is a study, as a matter of

         16  fact, the last time I was at one of these hearings,

         17  that was put out by two social scientists based on

         18  how -- entitled The Declining Status of Minorities

         19  in New York City Construction Industry. They make

         20  known that short of affirmative action, the days of

         21  the so-called minority contractors and workers are

         22  numbered.

         23                 What we saw happen around the World

         24  Trade Center, so-called emergency involvement of the

         25  Department of Design and Construction is typical. We
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          2  can almost rest assured that after the emergency and

          3  the development takes place, the same exclusion of

          4  contractors and workers of color will obtain, as it

          5  did during the emergency.

          6                 I was sitting during the hearings and

          7  I was sort of at a loss to see why we weren't really

          8  getting down to the major issue that I thought this

          9  Committee meeting was being called for, because it

         10  was going into a lot of technical stuff, a lot of

         11  bureaucratic stuff, that was concealing I think what

         12  is a deep concern certainly to the Councilman who

         13  called for this meeting and others that so

         14  assembled.

         15                 Until such time as we, the City, and

         16  this Council can take some leadership on that,

         17  established a program that we have outlined in the

         18  paper that I gave to you, we will be going through

         19  this endlessly.

         20                 The Lower Manhattan Redevelopment

         21  Corporation will be up and running, they will be

         22  rebuilding Lower Manhattan, as well as they've been

         23  doing the rest of the City. Minority contractors,

         24  black, Latino contractors and workers will be where

         25  we have always been, outside, or if we are inside,
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          2  we are inside tokenly.

          3                 I heard someone mention that I think

          4  from the General Contractors Association that we

          5  were 40 percent of the workforce down at the Ground

          6  Zero. Well, that's a crock. If we were at best 20

          7  percent, that's a lot.

          8                 So, they lie. And they always lie

          9  about this in their face of denying folk of color

         10  their fair participation in this industry.

         11                 Now, keep in mind, when we got

         12  started we were about 20, 25 percent of the

         13  population. If you put the blacks, the Latino, the

         14  Asian communities together, we're well over 50

         15  percent of the population.

         16                 In fact, there should be a set aside

         17  program for that whole redevelopment that's going to

         18  take place down there where 50 percent of the

         19  contracts and the workforce is set aside for folk of

         20  color, if we are ever to break this systemic racism

         21  that excludes our folk from participating.

         22                 We've just come through a big

         23  building boom. The same thing obtained with that

         24  building boom. I think anybody who knows anything

         25  about the industry has got to be clear about this.
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          2  It is deeply, as the study reveals, deep in

          3  nepotism, cronyism, modern forms of what you would

          4  call tribalism, and they're hell bent about keeping

          5  the work in the contract for themselves and

          6  excluding folk of color.

          7                 I would only hope that this Council

          8  could begin to do something concrete for once in its

          9  life that begins to change this dismal situation, in

         10  view of the fact that the African-American Latino

         11  communities of this City are already in deep

         12  depression. There's an economic depression out

         13  there, nothing is being done to even talk about it

         14  or to address the hardship that's affecting millions

         15  of New Yorkers.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Just for the

         17  record, by the way, this Committee has had hearings

         18  to try and -- well, first, about the fact that this

         19  Administration did away with the Women and

         20  Minority-Owned Business Program that did exist,

         21  rolled over in a lawsuit and we were trying to

         22  reinstitute it, and the Administration has simply

         23  refused.

         24                 Next.

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: I know you're concerned
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          2  about quality of life issues, you know, so when I'll

          3  be talking about jobs, the job is more than just a

          4  job. A job is a person's ability to pay his bills

          5  and obligations, or even move forward in life. A lot

          6  of starting points as well as business starts with a

          7  job, and the right to pursue an occupation and

          8  access to the hiring process is just not happening

          9  out there, you know? And if you did a pilot program

         10  and just took say people from all boroughs, the five

         11  boroughs, because to me I'm looking at area

         12  residents, people who live and reside in the City of

         13  New York, you know, you take just for example, the

         14  companies that you mentioned and you sent how ever

         15  many people you want to send to the offices and to

         16  the job, and see how many people get in.

         17                 A lot of companies are coming in,

         18  before the job even starts, the job is bought and

         19  sold out. Meaning, it could be a 30-story building,

         20  a 90-story tower. And people tell you there's

         21  nothing there, come back, put in an application and

         22  all. In other words, you know how you get no, no,

         23  and no, you have to be on the street level with

         24  numbers of people looking for work, just getting

         25  told no.
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          2                 You know, basically, I just want to

          3  make it clear, that's not equal employment

          4  opportunity. When you are in the planning stage or

          5  you go and have the ground breaking and a majority

          6  of companies are coming in, whether it's Staten

          7  Island or Manhattan or Ground Zero, and they

          8  basically got their people. They already go their

          9  people, so where is the hiring problem? Where is the

         10  opportunity to compete for the jobs. And it's not

         11  only laborers' jobs, it's a lot of these trades

         12  jobs. Have you ever tried getting into the

         13  electrician or the plumbers in some of these unions,

         14  send someone down and try to get them in. You feel

         15  like a number on a list, and I'm not going to talk

         16  long, but take the site safety managers, in order to

         17  get the experience to qualify to take tests for the

         18  licensed site safety manager you have to work, you

         19  have to work for somebody, and it's the same way

         20  with many of the positions out there. Too many

         21  people in the street are not getting opportunities,

         22  and that's why this organization is springing up and

         23  will remain out there because individual

         24  organizations are catching hell to get in, so

         25  imagine what individuals are catching. And that's
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          2  the situation.

          3                 They have to have some type of a

          4  mechanism that says companies can't start 90-story

          5  towers, or any type of construction, without some

          6  type of access to the hiring process, or get rid of

          7  access to the hiring process, or equal employment

          8  opportunity. It's who you know, you're going to get

          9  hired. There's too many people without jobs that

         10  didn't see a Thanksgiving and ain't going to see a

         11  Christmas or a New Years. And to understand those

         12  people, you have to be with them on the street or

         13  one of them that's not working. I don't know how

         14  many people in this room know people who haven't

         15  been working for over six months, not only

         16  construction but different areas, and haven't got

         17  employed. What are they, the most undesirable people

         18  in America? There's too many jobless people in New

         19  York City and it goes all over, even the airports.

         20  People treat you like a terrorist when you're

         21  shaping for work in certain areas, and since the

         22  World Trade Center disaster it's got so bad where

         23  everything is so security, security which is

         24  important, but they never get in to talk to the

         25  right people, and the right people don't want to
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          2  talk to them because they already got the crews. If

          3  you're not in there before they get in there, the

          4  chance of you getting in there, getting ready to

          5  roll up your sleeves and fight.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          7                 Next.

          8                 MR. HEYLIGER: If I may? You

          9  understand the frustration that you just heard. I

         10  need you to really look at this table here. Look at

         11  us. We died also on the 11th, but we have been

         12  purposely excluded from participation. Our

         13  organization, the Council, leadership Council, the

         14  various different minority business organizations,

         15  we came together in terms of maximizing our

         16  resources. Maybe we have been around for three

         17  years, and maybe the Administration doesn't know us,

         18  maybe some of the big contractors don't know us,

         19  which is untrue, because our amounts are pretty

         20  large, but Amie (phonetic) has been around for 25

         21  years. We are being accredited for bringing $90

         22  million into their training project. That was a

         23  battle starting with how this gentleman just

         24  started. It didn't come from straight up

         25  negotiations.
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          2                 The reality of it is that we have

          3  contractors who are large enough and known to have

          4  been able to participate as part of the emergency

          5  plan. We sent some of our contractors who have the

          6  same type of equipment. They were turned back. First

          7  they were invited, we went down there, then we were

          8  turned back.

          9                 We have evidence of a foreman from

         10  some of the major contractors there who denied us

         11  access and work. So, the issue that we do not exist

         12  is not there.

         13                 The Minority Business Leadership

         14  Council formed a task force to send truck loads of

         15  water and food, blankets down there for two straight

         16  weeks. Borough President of Brooklyn Golden

         17  commended us for our activity for that first month.

         18  But we have not been able to get an audience to get

         19  work.

         20                 So, it's by design that we're not

         21  allowed to participate. For the first time the union

         22  is willing to open up negotiations because they're

         23  being pressed out, because of Bechtel comes in,

         24  there is going to be a union problem. Bechtel is a

         25  double-breasted company, union and non-union, as it
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          2  so pleases.

          3                 The entities that are currently there

          4  know all of us. The agency in charge, now after I

          5  just heard that last testimony, I guess maybe

          6  they're not in charge, but whatever they're supposed

          7  to be doing, they know exactly who we are and where

          8  we are. They chose not to invite us, and they've

          9  chose not to include us. There is not a single major

         10  contractor in this town, whether it's a trade

         11  contractor, whether it's the head of the union,

         12  whether it's a GC or MC, every single one of them

         13  knows the name of Haughton, knows Fight Back and

         14  Amie, they could have easily reached out for us.

         15                 Programmatically, how do you plan to

         16  deal with Ground Zero?

         17                 Do you understand that soon the only

         18  people left in this town are going to be minorities?

         19                 If we do not participate and gain

         20  part of the economic stimulus, if we disappear, New

         21  York disappears.

         22                 You have to understand that what

         23  happened there has ramifications throughout the

         24  entire City. Our small businesses in the outer

         25  boroughs, and while we call outer boroughs, but I
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          2  thought we're part of New York City, but outer

          3  boroughs, we lost also. When some companies down

          4  there lost, we lost, some of our vendors lost, some

          5  of the architects, they lost out.

          6                 So, it has a rippling effect across

          7  the entire City. We should, in fact, be thinking

          8  about unifying not just for the sake of wearing the

          9  flag, but unifying so we can participate in the

         10  rebuilding of our City. We have a right to do that.

         11  We lost like everybody else lost. And we have that

         12  expertise to deal with it.

         13                 People talk about deep pockets. The

         14  banks are there. Some of these so-called deep

         15  pockets, they got in lines with the bank, they don't

         16  have the cash in the corner, or underneath the

         17  office desk.

         18                 The issue is quite clear. If you look

         19  at the formation of the Lower Manhattan

         20  Redevelopment Corporation, there is no

         21  representation here for the Small Minority,

         22  Woman-owned Business Association or community. No

         23  representation at all.

         24                 We have creativity, ingenuity, we

         25  could offer something to that effect. If you build
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          2  only in Lower Manhattan, the town is going to die.

          3                 You need to look at a program that

          4  allows our expertise to participate to show how this

          5  town can be rebuilt, retain its financial status and

          6  at the same time turn adversity into an asset for

          7  us. And that can be done if all was shared in the

          8  process of rebuilding Manhattan.

          9                 If in fact it's Bechtel or the big

         10  four, if only they are allowed to participate, if

         11  there is not a program put in place that allows for

         12  our participation, it will be a costly, ineffective

         13  rebuilding of Lower Manhattan.

         14                 I suggest to you that when you look

         15  at the issue of where are they moving to, to move

         16  some place you need a real estate broker. Is there a

         17  single African-American or Hispanic Real Estate

         18  Broker who evolved through this process? No.

         19                 There is insurance. They haven't even

         20  wrapped up the entire insurance. I understand one of

         21  Turner's problems of whether or not they would stay

         22  involved is the whole issue or insurance. Are there

         23  any minority insurance brokers involved in this

         24  scenario? No, there are not.

         25                 There has to be new office space
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          2  designed and equipped. We have vendors. Have any

          3  minority vendors been approached in any of this? No.

          4                 We're talking about spending $20

          5  billion, with no minority participation. That's

          6  criminal. That's not an oversight, that's criminal.

          7                 We have every aspect that's needed to

          8  be done from the removal of the debris. If we had

          9  moved some of the debris, you wouldn't be getting

         10  ready to lock up people for stealing the steel.

         11  Because we certainly don't know no person to sell it

         12  to.

         13                 The reality of it is that people got

         14  together and decided who was going to play and who

         15  was not going to play.

         16                 If you want that billion dollars from

         17  Bush, you will have to take Bechtel. Bechtel and

         18  Bush' father work hand-in-hand. You want to get

         19  promoted? You want to be a cabinet member? Go work

         20  for Bechtel. Bechtel is either the director, Bechtel

         21  is either a cabinet member or the X cabinet member.

         22                 I had dealings with Bechtel all the

         23  over in Kuwait, they practically run the currency in

         24  Kuwait, so it's not like we're talking about some

         25  small guy that we can have some opposition to, so,
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          2  if the media wants to be honest, the media should

          3  support the Council in getting the answers to the

          4  questions that you raise about if Bechtel is coming,

          5  under what grounds are they coming, how are they

          6  going to participate with the other major

          7  contractors in this town, and how are those major

          8  contractors in this town going to include us in the

          9  rebuilding of this particular town?

         10                 Because I will tell you one thing, if

         11  one minority contractor ever appears in the

         12  newspaper of maybe looking sideways, the Mayor would

         13  not let him participate in anything.

         14                 So, all we're simply asking, I don't

         15  think this is simply a matter that the Council can

         16  deal with because the outgoing administration and

         17  the in-coming administration may or may not choose

         18  to deal with the issues as far as the Council is

         19  concerned, but in a society like this, it has always

         20  been prevalent that the media make and break many

         21  issues.

         22                 It would seem to me that this is an

         23  issue that the Council may want to call a press

         24  conference with the media and demand from the media

         25  to raise some of these issues, demand from the media
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          2  the same way they can drive people underground, let

          3  them drive the tooth out for a change.

          4                 In closing, let me simply say this:

          5  There's about ten minority, woman-owned associations

          6  that belong to the Minority Business Leadership

          7  Council. Within our realm, and joining with people

          8  like Fight Back, we are prepared to offer our

          9  program designs.

         10                 We have submitted a design for

         11  redevelopment in any minority community that we

         12  think creates an equity position. I will turn this

         13  information over to the Council.

         14                 I will also turn over to the Council

         15  what we think should be done and how to deal with

         16  the issue of Bechtel, the unions, and the major CM

         17  corporations.

         18                 I will say this, the union has agreed

         19  to a task force to look at the issue as how they

         20  relate to the minority business community, which

         21  heretofore has not been in our best interest. So

         22  there's progress in that area.

         23                 But as far as the four contracts that

         24  are listed, it's not rocket science, all you have to

         25  do as the City Council is call those four
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          2  contractors in, who are not leaving town, they're

          3  going to be here, they're going to be bidding on all

          4  the work. You need to call them to the table and ask

          5  them for their program of inclusion. That would be a

          6  first step.

          7                 Then I would have Bechtel sit with

          8  you and the media and let them give you by name of

          9  individual and a written document, their plan for

         10  inclusion, and did they relate to the minority

         11  business community, not just contracts, there's more

         12  involved in here than just contracting.

         13                 We have professional service and

         14  retail service and vendorships as well. Did they

         15  address their issue, and does their program include

         16  their concerns?

         17                 If you do that, you may be able to

         18  get around the stonewalling that we received this

         19  morning, and be able to bring some results without

         20  trying to create legislation, and I thank you for

         21  this opportunity.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, thank you.

         23  Okay, thank you very much.

         24                 The next panel --

         25                 MR. HAUGHTON: Before we leave, I
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          2  forgot to mention, we do have major contractors,

          3  African-American contractors in this City who could

          4  have performed during that emergency period and

          5  thereafter. Qualified, competent, financially

          6  backed, capable of performing.

          7                 They make known to me that they were

          8  totally bypassed. Nobody called them.

          9                 I assume that unless there is

         10  definite measures taken that will continue to be the

         11  case. That should be addressed.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: One thing I would

         13  suggest is if you have specific information on that,

         14  that they send that to this Committee.

         15                 MR. HAUGHTON: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And we'll look

         17  into it. Okay? Thank you.

         18                 Okay, next panel. Leon Soffin, from

         19  Local 375, Mitchell Feder from Local 375, Claude

         20  Fort from 375 and Zachary Ramsey from DC 37, AFSCME.

         21                 Okay, gentlemen, if you'll raise your

         22  right hands, please.

         23                 Do you all swear to tell the truth,

         24  the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         25                 MR. RAMSEY: Yes, I do.
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          2                 MR. FORT: Yes.

          3                 MR. FEDER: Yes.

          4                 MR. SOFFIN: I do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Figure out which

          6  order you want to go in, and then just state your

          7  names and your position and then proceed.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 MR. FORT: Good afternoon. My name is

         10  Claude Fort.  I'm President of the Civil Service

         11  Technical Guild, Local 375. I'm also a licensed

         12  professional engineer.

         13                 I appreciate the opportunity to

         14  testify before the City Council Committee on

         15  Contracts.

         16                 MR. RAMSEY: My name is Zachary

         17  Ramsey. I'm Deputy Administrator of District Council

         18  37, and, again, we thank the Committee for having

         19  this hearing.

         20                 MR. FEDER: My name is Mitchell Feder.

         21  I'm chair of the Civil Service Technical Guild

         22  Anti-Privatization Committee.

         23                 MR. SOFFIN: My name is Leon Soffin,

         24  I'm a licensed professional engineer working with

         25  Local 375.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay.

          3                 MR. FORT: Yes, our purpose in

          4  appearing before the City Council Committee on

          5  Contracts is to strongly oppose proposals for the

          6  City to hire the Bechtel Corporation to take over

          7  the budget manager functions at Ground Zero.

          8                 Since September 11th to the present,

          9  our members from the City Department of Design and

         10  Construction have performed with competence and

         11  dedication. Both the duties of budget manager Gonzel

         12  (phonetic) and the investigation of sewers, water

         13  supply and work conditions. And they have money

         14  toward the removal of rubble. They have coordinated

         15  with various City agencies and money toward the

         16  safety conditions. They have provided assistance,

         17  directions, plans, strategy planning, everywhere you

         18  turn there is a DDC engineer making sure that heavy

         19  machinery is placed on safe ground and not removed

         20  without permission. And so far there have been no

         21  fatalities and very few injuries that require

         22  hospitalization. They have done the job

         23  professionally and efficiently.

         24                 Now, we hear from press reports that

         25  the City of New York is planning to hire the Bechtel

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            147

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  to act as budget manager at Ground Zero, replacing

          3  City engineers who best know the disaster site and

          4  its problems.

          5                 Constructing with Bechtel is not

          6  necessary or efficient. Debris removal and site

          7  clearance is proceeding ahead of schedules. The City

          8  has proven that it has the capacity to manage and

          9  coordinate operation at the site.

         10                 Bringing in Bechtel creates another

         11  unnecessary and costly layer of administration.

         12                 We do not need this firm, or any

         13  other private firm for that matter, coming in to

         14  take over work that is being done cost effectively

         15  and safely by City engineers.

         16                 This privatization is a waste of

         17  public funds at a time when Mayor Giuliani has asked

         18  City agencies to look for 15 percent cuts in light

         19  of expected large budget deficits.

         20                 Our local firmly believes that the

         21  engineering services at Ground Zero are best

         22  delivered by a skilled, committed in-house staff of

         23  professionals, who have the experience to address

         24  the challenges at the disaster site. So, we

         25  respectfully request that the members of the
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          2  Committee on Contracts tell Mayor Giuliani to stop

          3  the hiring of Bechtel and keep our members on the

          4  job.

          5                 Stopping this privatization of the

          6  functions of project manager at the site clean-up

          7  will be a good thing for the City engineers, for all

          8  City workers and for the citizens of this great

          9  City.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. RAMSEY: Good afternoon. I was

         12  here since early this morning. On behalf of Lee

         13  Saunders, the Administrator of DC 37 and the 56

         14  locals, and the 125,000 members of District Council

         15  37, I am here to express our strong, strong

         16  opposition to Mayor Giuliani's decision to contract

         17  with the Bechtel Corporation to oversee the clean-up

         18  of the World Trade Center disaster.

         19                 Thus far the Mayor has negotiated

         20  this deal in secret, outside the normal scrutiny of

         21  Charter mandated procurement rules. He has made no

         22  announcement to City Council, to this Committee, to

         23  the public or the press, as to why he believes

         24  contracting with Bechtel is necessary.

         25                 There is no information about the
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          2  nature of the terms of the Mayor's deal, or what an

          3  agreement with Bechtel might cost the City, the

          4  State or the federal treasury.

          5                 The City's procurement rules allow

          6  suspension of competitive bidding in an emergency,

          7  but I question whether a management emergency now

          8  exists.

          9                 Four major construction firms, their

         10  subcontractors, building trades employees, had been

         11  working diligently and efficiently to excavate,

         12  clear and haul debris since September 14th.

         13                 Their work is overseen on the City's

         14  behalf by engineers employed by the New York City

         15  Department of Design and Construction or DDC.

         16                 These professionals are members of

         17  Local 365, DC 37. It is the 60 civil servants whose

         18  hard work will be taken over if the Bechtel

         19  Corporation is brought in as construction project

         20  manager.

         21                 Let me give you a sense of what these

         22  Local 375 members do by reading a passage of a

         23  report by our national union.

         24                 DDC's team functions in three ways:

         25  As a clearinghouse, providing anything that's needed
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          2  on site, from flashlights to face masks; as a

          3  conduit, cutting through red tape to get the

          4  Sanitation Department to bring in water tankers,

          5  and, for example, the Police Department to set up

          6  barricades along the streets; and as team of experts

          7  eyeballing every piece of steel to make sure that it

          8  is not moving while men are working on or under,

          9  checking the windspeeds to ensure that loads being

         10  hauled will not topple over.

         11                 Monitoring water seeping, and in from

         12  the Hudson River, or making sure the spongy ground

         13  is able to support an 800-ton crane.

         14                 As Local 375 President Claude Fort

         15  explained, these men and women are the connective

         16  tissue that makes the World Trade Center clean up

         17  and run -- the clean up run more efficiently.

         18                 They handle all the functions of a

         19  construction management contractor, and they do it

         20  admirably under extraordinary difficult

         21  circumstances.

         22                 The effort is ahead of schedule, more

         23  than half the debris has been removed, all without a

         24  single injury.

         25                 The difficult task of stabilizing the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            151

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONTRACTS

          2  site, that means securing the slurry walls of the

          3  bathtub that the World Trade Center rested on, lies

          4  ahead and will likely take up to a year to complete.

          5                 So, why change things now? Why does

          6  Mayor Giuliani want to bring in the Bechtel

          7  Corporation, a company with little or no track

          8  record on major capital building projects in New

          9  York City, a company with a history of cost overruns

         10  and conflicts of interest in other public

         11  infrastructure projects, a company with

         12  controversial ties to the Regan and Bush

         13  Administration, the World Bank and Export/Import

         14  Bank.

         15                 Why does Mayor Giuliani want to pay

         16  the Bechtel Corporation millions of dollars when

         17  vital recovery funds are scarce and must be used as

         18  efficiently and cost effectively as possible?

         19                 There is reason to worry. The

         20  standard payment arrangement for private

         21  construction project managers is a percentage fee of

         22  the total budget. The New York Times notes that if

         23  Bechtel gets 2.75 percent the industry standard, it

         24  translates into $27.5 million off the top of the

         25  budget. If the Mayor believes this is more cost
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          2  effective than paying his current workforce, then

          3  let him come forward and prove it.

          4                 Massachusetts officials now

          5  acknowledge that they made a mistake bringing

          6  Bechtel in at the beginning of the central artery

          7  tunnel project in Boston because the State became

          8  too dependent on Bechtel for engineering design,

          9  project management, and general contractor

         10  functions.

         11                 It did not have the independent

         12  engineering expertise to safeguard its interest and

         13  keep Bechtel and its other contractors in check.

         14                 Meanwhile, costs grew to a whopping

         15  fourteen and a half billion dollars. As Jordan Levy,

         16  the MTA Board member leading demands to force

         17  Bechtel and its partner Parsons Brinkerhoff to pay

         18  $250 million in reparation says, "There were

         19  dreamers who said we should do a partnership with

         20  Bechtel Parsons. The only one who pays is us, and

         21  the only one who makes the profit is them."

         22                 New York City needs to rely on its

         23  own engineering employees to guarantee the City's

         24  interest, the Mayor should appreciate the

         25  contribution these long-term civil servants are
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          2  making to the reconstruction process, not get rid of

          3  them.

          4                 I want to end with one of the 60

          5  Local 375 members told me a few days ago. He said,

          6  "We were extremely depressed when word got out that

          7  the Mayor was going to bring in Bechtel, after all

          8  our hard work and dedication. It was like being

          9  shoved up against the wall, despite living through

         10  all the horror of recovery victims' bodies, living

         11  with the depression and the enormous sadness, after

         12  all we have accomplished, the Mayor would just sweep

         13  us aside."

         14                 The work to clear and secure the site

         15  of the most deadly attack on US soil is dirty,

         16  hazardous and extremely arduous. Public employees

         17  working as construction managers for the New York

         18  City Department of Design and Construction work ten,

         19  12-hour shifts through nights, weekends and

         20  holidays, just like the firefighters, the crane

         21  operators, iron workers, truck drivers and all the

         22  other everyday heroes toiling at Ground Zero. It is

         23  simply unconscionable to bring in Bechtel

         24  Corporation at this time to take over.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

          3                 Next.

          4                 MR. SOFFIN: My name is Leon Soffin.

          5  Thank you for the opportunity to appear this

          6  afternoon.

          7                 I would like to give you an example

          8  of the dedication, professionalism and expertise of

          9  the City engineers in relation to managing large

         10  construction projects, such as the Ground Zero site.

         11                 I'm talking about Water Tunnel Number

         12  3, which is the largest capital construction project

         13  in New York City history.

         14                 Planning began in early 1960,

         15  construction started in 1970, it's going to be

         16  completed in 2020. The total cost, $6 billion.

         17                 At completion, the length of the

         18  water tunnel will total 60 miles to the Westchester,

         19  Bronx, Manhattan, Queens and Brooklyn.

         20                 The construction management for City

         21  Tunnels 1, 2 and 3 have been performed in-house by

         22  employees of the former Board of Water Supply and

         23  later by engineers of the Department of

         24  Environmental Protection. All this work performed

         25  with dedication and professionalism.
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          2                 At the dedication of the Brooklyn and

          3  Queens link-up of the tunnel, the City itself, and I

          4  quote, said this: "City Tunnel Number 3 would not

          5  exist without the creativity and dedication of New

          6  York City engineers, some of whom have spent their

          7  entire careers working on this project.

          8                 I'm talking now about the proven

          9  capability and performance of the City engineers at

         10  the Third Water Tunnel is being emulated at Ground

         11  Zero.

         12                 They've proven, they have proven

         13  performance in monitoring the contractors, in

         14  monitoring safety conditions, and in working

         15  cooperation with police, firemen, rescue workers and

         16  federal employees.

         17                 In summary, the position of Local 375

         18  is, contracting out to Bechtel is not cost

         19  effective, it has not been justified by comparative

         20  cost analysis, it's a waste of taxpayer money, City

         21  engineers have proven performance at the site of

         22  Ground Zero, City engineers are readily available to

         23  do whatever work is necessary at Ground Zero, and

         24  City engineers best know the site.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 MR. FEDER: Good afternoon.

          3                 My name is Mitchell Feder, Chair of

          4  the Civil Service Technical Guild's

          5  Anti-Privatization Committee.

          6                 I want to thank the City Council,

          7  Committee on Contracts, for this opportunity to

          8  testify on the proposed contract awards for project

          9  management of Ground Zero to the Bechtel group.

         10                 My purpose in appearing before the

         11  City Council Committee on Contracts on this matter

         12  is to demonstrate the inappropriateness of this

         13  proposed contract award. Before explaining the

         14  Technical Guild's position on this proposed contract

         15  award, I must first state categorically that the

         16  Technical Guild is opposed to any further

         17  privatization at Ground Zero.

         18                 The reason for refusing the contract

         19  award in essence to nullify it prior to the signing

         20  of the contract are many.

         21                 1) The City of New York, under the

         22  pretense of an emergency declaration, is ready to

         23  award this contract. In fact, there is no state of

         24  emergency.

         25                 For almost three months now debris
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          2  removal and body recovery has taken place. There is

          3  no life-threatening event occurring that could

          4  constitute an emergency at this point in time.

          5                 How does the City of New York justify

          6  this declaration of emergency? They don't, and they

          7  cannot, because when put under a magnifying glass,

          8  none of their arguments or reasons stand up.

          9                 Once again, City Hall is using its

         10  influence and power to usurp whatever honor and

         11  professionalism remained within the rank and file of

         12  the civil service workers of this great city.

         13                 The only reason for this award

         14  appears to be politically connected.

         15                 2) Having almost three months to

         16  contemplate this contract, the City of New York

         17  could have easily held a Request for Proposals,

         18  known as an RFP, or a Request for Qualifications

         19  known as an RFQ, which could have been open to

         20  public bidding process.

         21                 The open period for the proposal

         22  submissions could have been five or ten days,

         23  thereby affording competitive bidding as called for

         24  in the contract procedure bylaws.

         25                 Instead, City Hall has taken upon
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          2  themselves to award a sole source contract under the

          3  disguise of a state of an emergency three months

          4  after the fact.

          5                 This is a blatant abuse of the

          6  contracting process.

          7                 3) The proposed contract awardee, the

          8  Bechtel Group, has a dismal work record concerning

          9  their project management of the Big Dig in Boston.

         10                 The news media has been tracking

         11  their progress, or lack of progress, and cost

         12  escalations for years.

         13                 Bechtel has been on the job there

         14  since day one. The original cost estimate was for

         15  $2.6 billion. The projected finished cost estimate

         16  to date currently stands at $14.6 billion.

         17                 During a five-year period when costs

         18  spiraled up billions of dollars, Bechtel is on

         19  record of not conducting one cost estimate.

         20                 OSHA has fined many contractors on

         21  the site as well with work violations. There have

         22  also been many deaths stemming from poor management

         23  oversight. It is the responsibility of the Project

         24  Management Team, in essence Bechtel, to ensure that

         25  all contractors on the worksite comply with OSHA
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          2  regulations.

          3                 Millions of dollars are being awarded

          4  to contractors for delays that should have been

          5  foreseen by Bechtel.

          6                 Construction time frames are not

          7  being met and Bechtel has no defense for this.

          8                 Currently, the Boston Turnpike

          9  Authority is also considering on terminating

         10  Bechtel's contract, which if it runs through to

         11  completion, will pay them $2.1 billion in fees.

         12                 At this point I'd like to read some

         13  quotes from the Boston Globe and another printed

         14  paper up in Boston that has been keeping track for

         15  the record.

         16                 In short, here is one quote. I have

         17  never seen a company so arrogant, said the manager

         18  of one prominent design effort who asked not to be

         19  named. They had an attitude right from the beginning

         20  of this project, they were God and everybody was

         21  going to cowtow to them.

         22                 Federal officials are preparing to

         23  release a blistering audit this week that is

         24  expected to call the project bankrupt and show the

         25  project's total cost could reach $13.6 billion. A
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          2  $2.8 billion spike from projections just six months

          3  ago, and half a billion dollars more than the

          4  project acknowledged.

          5                 The audit will also call for the

          6  replacement of the project's management team and

          7  will suggest federal officials explore barring those

          8  managers from any federal projects.

          9                 This was from an article from the

         10  Boston Globe, dated April 9th, 2000.

         11                 From a Night Rider Tribune Business

         12  News, dated August 22nd, 2001, it states in the

         13  opening statement: The Massachusetts Turnpike

         14  Authority Board has spent four months examining

         15  possible replacements for Bechtel Parsons

         16  Brinkerhoff, and is prepared to jettison the Big

         17  Dig's private mangers next month when they appear

         18  before the board, panel members said yesterday.

         19                 It seems that the people that even

         20  hire them don't even want them at this point.

         21                 And the fourth reason behind the

         22  removal of Bechtel is: Since the catastrophic attack

         23  on 9/11, the Civil Service Employees of DDC members

         24  of Technical Guild 375 have performed flawlessly in

         25  execution of their work assignments at Ground Zero.
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          2                 There has not been one major injury

          3  or death in any work-related accident.

          4                 Management cannot point to any

          5  definitive experience or expertise that the Tech

          6  Guild members do not have in handling this Herculean

          7  task of coordinating the various trades, hazards,

          8  body removal and debris clean-up.

          9                 The only reasons to further privatize

         10  the site in regard to project management would be if

         11  the dedicated professionals currently at the site

         12  were either overwhelmed with the tasks at hand, or

         13  if they were incompetent - neither is the case.

         14                 We, therefore, ask that the members

         15  of the Committee on Contracts tell Mayor Giuliani to

         16  stop hiring the Bechtel group and to keep our

         17  members at the site until the clean-up is completed.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         20                 Thank you very much for your

         21  testimony.

         22                 You know, let me begin by making an

         23  acknowledgment of the fact that you are really

         24  unsung heroes. The testimony that you have shared

         25  with us today reminds us that there are heroes down
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          2  there that are invisible by virtue of -- but they're

          3  doing the job, they're doing the job, and what makes

          4  it even more extraordinary is that you are City

          5  employees, you know, and we're proud of that,

          6  because you're doing the job, you're doing it

          7  without acknowledgment, you're doing it under very

          8  difficult circumstances, and we appreciate it, above

          9  and beyond what you're getting paid, we want you to

         10  know that we really appreciate the work that you're

         11  doing. And we will work to try to make sure that you

         12  stay there.

         13                 It seems the testimony has evolved

         14  that there are some good reasons in this time of

         15  crisis in which our economy and our fiscal situation

         16  is having problems, our morale problems, all kinds

         17  of problems, your presence there helps, and we want

         18  to see what we can do to make sure that you stay

         19  there.

         20                 Go ahead.

         21                 MR. FEDER: I would like to make a

         22  comment.

         23                 I'm very familiar with contract

         24  awards, especially with the federal government. An

         25  argument could be made, since the federal government
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          2  is actually underwriting this project that the City

          3  must follow the federal guidelines contract

          4  procedures and not their own in-house procedures.

          5  And in the federal guideline procedures there is a

          6  clause that states that no contract can be awarded

          7  on a percentage cost basis, especially for a

          8  consultant contract. And this is what this type of

          9  contract is. It's not a construction contract.

         10  Project management falls under a consultant-type A/E

         11  contract procurement requirement.

         12                 In the federal procedures, it states

         13  that they must be based on man hour work analysis.

         14  In essence, you figure out how many man hours are

         15  going to be at the job site, figure out their direct

         16  costs, multiply it by mark-up factor, and generally

         17  it's considered 2.5 to three times the actual direct

         18  cost, multiply it out and that's what your fee is.

         19                 I can only stress that the federal

         20  procurement guidelines prohibitly restrict and

         21  prohibit a percentage cost mark-up period. So,

         22  regardless of what the so-called industry average

         23  is, it should not come into play. Although, once you

         24  do come up with an actual cost mark-up, you could

         25  always turn that into a percentage, but it must be
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          2  started and worked up from the actual man hour

          3  breakdown times the multiplier, not based on a

          4  pre-determined percentage.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

          6  very much for that information.

          7                 The prior testimony was unrevealing,

          8  in terms of negotiations that may be going on with

          9  Bechtel. Do you have any sense of negotiations going

         10  on, other than what maybe had been written in the

         11  papers?

         12                 MR. FEDER: We had no knowledge other

         13  than that, but I forgot to mention a personal point

         14  here. With this sort of secretiveness that's been

         15  going around, sort of reminds me from a scene from

         16  Animal House, when the Dean comes down to the Animal

         17  House fraternity and tells them you've been on

         18  double secret probation, and that's exactly what

         19  this seems like, it's been double secret hiding, and

         20  it just seems that it's totally out of character,

         21  per se, and it's just outright wrong.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Have you

         23  attempted to communicate with the Administration in

         24  terms of these contracts, or in terms of this

         25  potential negotiation?
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          2                 MR. FORT: I've called the DDC

          3  commissioner, and he couldn't help me anyway, you

          4  know, in terms of finding information about Bechtel

          5  or any private company coming to take over the

          6  budget management functions at the site.

          7                 We tried to reach the Mayor's Office,

          8  and same thing. But we have read the press reports

          9  saying that the Bechtel is coming in and that's the

         10  only information that we have at this point.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, you

         12  reached out to the DDC Commissioner.

         13                 MR. FORT: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And he was

         15  not helpful.

         16                 MR. FORT: Well, the only thing he

         17  said, there was nothing finalized at this point.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: There is

         19  nothing finalized.

         20                 MR. FORT: When I called him there was

         21  no signed contract at that point.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But they

         23  suggest that something is in the works, even though

         24  it's not finalized?

         25                 I don't want to pin you down, I'm
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          2  just trying to get a sense of --

          3                 MR. FORT: Well, he said that there

          4  was nothing done, no contract signed, and that was

          5  it, you know? Yes, that was it.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

          7                 MR. FEDER: Recently there was a news

          8  blurb in the engineering news record that was maybe

          9  two paragraphs long short, but it did indicate that

         10  Bechtel was negotiating with the City, so there was

         11  -- at least from maybe their end, from the

         12  engineering industry, whether it was from Bechtel or

         13  whatever, there was communication to their in-house

         14  professional paper that they were negotiating on

         15  some type of contract that was imminent. So, there

         16  was a buzz out there, and at least the Mayor's

         17  Office should have the courtesy of communicating

         18  that to us.

         19                 MR. FORT: I have to correct myself,

         20  that was the Deputy Commissioner of DDC, not the

         21  Commissioner.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Fine. Fine.

         23                 Yes, sir?

         24                 MR. SOFFIN: One factor hasn't been

         25  mentioned, which we all know about, and that's the
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          2  corrosive effect of politics.

          3                 All the newspapers have pointed out

          4  that Amie Bechtel Board of Directors is a gentleman

          5  by the name of George Schultz, who is a former

          6  Secretary of State of the United States and who has

          7  a lot of clout, and there has been a lot of

          8  speculation, in view of everything we said there is

          9  no really good engineering reason why Bechtel should

         10  get it. So, there is a lot of suspicions that

         11  politics has reared its ugly head. I just wanted to

         12  mention it because it hasn't been mentioned at all

         13  in the deliberations.

         14                 MR. FEDER: Could I add one other

         15  thing, please?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         17                 MR. FEDER: As part of the federal

         18  guidelines for procurement, this doesn't technically

         19  come under a competitive bid process. This comes

         20  under the best suited type project for the

         21  consultant. That is when you have an RFP and you

         22  have an invite, if this was the case, there would be

         23  a rating scale that would be given to each, or

         24  basically a grade that would be given to each of the

         25  submission proposals. Their fee would be factored
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          2  out and would not be considered.

          3                 Once the best rated consultant was

          4  rated, then negotiations would begin with that one

          5  firm. If they could not have a meeting of the minds

          6  of a given fee, then theoretically they should drop

          7  down to the second highest rated firm. And that's

          8  how an A and E contract is supposed to be awarded.

          9  The fee plays no -- has no importance basically, up

         10  until the point that you want to award it, and if

         11  their fee is too high for your pockets, then you

         12  drop down.

         13                 In addition, under federal

         14  guidelines, every agency is supposed to negotiate

         15  the best possible price.

         16                 If, for example, in my interpretation

         17  of the federal guidelines you estimate this removal

         18  to be $30 million, they come in with $30 million.

         19  That doesn't mean you just give them the contract.

         20  You still are supposed to again try to negotiate one

         21  percentage decrease, two percent, something, you're

         22  supposed to on the federal guidelines get the best

         23  negotiated price.

         24                 MR. RAMSEY: I just want to make a

         25  comment, that the fact that we're having these
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          2  hearings, and the fact that no one really knows what

          3  has gone on with Bechtel, just tells me that it's

          4  being done at the highest levels of this

          5  Administration, and as you have pointed out, from

          6  what you have gotten back as well is that there are

          7  discussions going on. So, let it be clear that this

          8  was not intended to be public, it was intended to be

          9  politically driven by those who support certain

         10  administrations in the past and present, and clearly

         11  what we're trying to at least bring to the attention

         12  of the City Council, are concerns that in our world

         13  when something is a rumor and something is being

         14  talked about it becomes real. And that reality for

         15  us is such where we strongly believe that these

         16  negotiations have been going on, that this

         17  Administration at its highest levels have had these

         18  conversations. The City Council is not aware of it,

         19  the Committee is not aware of it, but we are

         20  strongly -- strongly believe that there is something

         21  afoot here. As a matter of fact, one of the

         22  contractors also was asked, I guess as a way to

         23  cover themselves, was asked to put in a bid to do

         24  the construction management. So --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Was that
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          2  Bovis?

          3                 MR. RAMSEY: I believe it was.

          4                 MR. FEDER: Yes, Bovis.

          5                 MR. RAMSEY: Yes, it was Bovis. And I

          6  was hoping they would be here, as well, to answer

          7  some of the questions of the Committee.

          8                 So, it's clear that there is

          9  something afoot here.

         10                 MR. FORT: Yes, let me volunteer an

         11  answer to a question that was asked before to the

         12  gentleman representing DDC, in terms of how much

         13  that will cost to keep the DDC engineers there,

         14  instead of giving to a private company.

         15                 While he claimed that there are 30

         16  engineers down there, our reports is that, from our

         17  members down there, is that we have 60 engineers.

         18  Sixty.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes.

         20                 MR. FORT: And I came from DDC, I was

         21  a design engineer from DDC and we engineer make

         22  between 50 and $60,000. So, even if we triple the

         23  salary of those engineers, and even if the job takes

         24  another 12 months, with 60 engineers we'll get

         25  approximately 10 million, close to $10 million. You
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          2  know, I'm trying to exaggerate. Even if you triple

          3  the salary, we have 60, not 30, like he said, and

          4  even if the job goes on for another 12 months, that

          5  will not cost us one-third of the money that we'll

          6  be paying a private company to do the same job, and

          7  not even better, you know?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, the

          9  debris removal and the demolition stage, this is

         10  about over. That's the sense I got from some of the

         11  prior testimony.

         12                 MR. SOFFIN: It's halfway.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: It's halfway

         14  over.

         15                 They're ahead of schedule. When would

         16  the schedule, when would it be over, everyone said

         17  they are ahead of schedule, when would it be over,

         18  would you say?

         19                 MR. FEDER: They estimated late

         20  spring, early summer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. So,

         22  let's say May/June.

         23                 And that's ahead of schedule. DDC

         24  would normally still remain in the picture during

         25  the recovery and rebuild stage?
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          2                 MR. FEDER: Well, right now officially

          3  this is what I was going to bring in in a minute or

          4  two. The property currently has a 99-year lease by a

          5  gentleman, I believe the name is Silverstein. So,

          6  once the removal is done, it becomes his

          7  responsibility to replace what was there under his

          8  lease, long-term lease with the Port Authority.

          9                 Obviously the Port Authority is going

         10  to have some say on the matter on what gets built,

         11  same thing with the Planning Commission.

         12                 So, right now that's what they're

         13  discussing, and I heard unofficially that they are

         14  planning on bringing in multiple dwellings at this

         15  point, not really commercial space at this point.

         16  But that's sort of like getting ahead of ourselves.

         17                 There was an issue earlier on which

         18  agencies are able to issue contracts. Virtually all

         19  City agencies within their own in-house procedures

         20  can issue contracts to benefit that agency. The

         21  question here is, what agency can issue a contract

         22  on a private, this is basically a private site out

         23  of the hands of the Port Authority.

         24                 The only thing I could come up with

         25  in my mind is the economic corporation, because they
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          2  had broad-based powers. Unless there is something in

          3  the Mayor's Office that they, themselves, could

          4  issue a contract, the only rationale that I could

          5  see is either Silverstein giving the Port Authority

          6  the authority back to them to issue a contract, and

          7  I don't know if they would agree to that, or if

          8  Silverstein himself would do that, or the Economic

          9  Development Corp. But if it's coming from the City,

         10  it's most likely the Economic Development Corp would

         11  do it, and they would maybe state some type of,

         12  again if some type of state of emergency exists, the

         13  Economic Development Corp will come in and redevelop

         14  the southern portion of Manhattan and by that means

         15  I could see them doing it.

         16                 Any other agency, other than DDC, I

         17  believe they would get ripped to shreds on, because

         18  they just don't have the downright authority to do

         19  it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, in other

         21  words, the idea of contracting with the Port

         22  Authority is not really doable, because the property

         23  or the lease is presently in the hands of

         24  Silverstein?

         25                 MR. FEDER: Technically that's
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          2  correct, unless Silverstein releases some authority

          3  or power.

          4                 I cannot see on what I know publicly,

          5  that the authority could usurp that lease.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. But it

          7  would have to compensate, I would assume?

          8                 MR. FEDER: Repeat that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: If the Port

         10  Authority used its power to take the property back,

         11  I would assume they would have to compensate

         12  Silverstein.

         13                 MR. FEDER: Most definitely. But that

         14  has not been written into the papers. No one ever

         15  dreamt this up. Usually a lease like that would be a

         16  triple net lease where he takes full responsibility

         17  on it. But again, you just can't go carte blanche

         18  and build whatever you want. Port Authority has some

         19  say. They just lost 13 million square feet, and how

         20  we could just carte blanche say we're going to put

         21  up a multiple housing project there or development

         22  of mixed income properties without their say so or

         23  at least major input is beyond me.

         24                 But based on my knowledge of

         25  contracts and leases, either it's going to be in
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          2  Silverstein's hands or the Mayor's influence with

          3  the Economic Development Corp. I cannot see any

          4  other agency other than DDC then coming in there.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, if the

          6  contract is with EDC, then DDC will stay?

          7                 MR. FEDER: No, no. Whatever contract

          8  that the Economic Development Corporation makes,

          9  whether it's technically legal or not, once that

         10  contract is signed, then we would have to go to

         11  court to try to stop it.

         12                 They could throw DDC off the site at

         13   -- I mean, right now the Mayor could order DDC off

         14  the site. The DDC is a mayoral agency and they're at

         15  the Mayor's beck and call. So just because EDC is

         16  going to issue another contract, it's the terms of

         17  that contract and the private contractor coming onto

         18  the site that will determine who is going to remain

         19  there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I just wanted to

         21  ask a quick question on that.

         22                 But the site itself is owned by the

         23  Port Authority?

         24                 MR. FEDER: It's owned by the Port --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: But it's leased to
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          2  Silverstein?

          3                 MR. FEDER: Ninety-nine lease, to the

          4  best of my knowledge.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: And in fact,

          6  because it's owned by the Port Authority, is it --

          7  like the old WTC was exempt from any of the City

          8  requirements, that's why they didn't have to comply

          9  with the code.

         10                 If Silverstein is going forward, is

         11  it going to be subject to local ordinances and laws?

         12  Or is it going to be subject to the Port Authority?

         13                 MR. FEDER: Well, my understanding was

         14  the World Trade Center was under a State mandate, so

         15  they came under the State building code or whatever,

         16  that's how they usurp the City building codes or

         17  whatever, if that was in fact the case.

         18                 You're getting into an area that's a

         19  little bit out of my expertise. I could not, you

         20  know, definitely say yes or no.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Because that's how

         22  I think that Port Authority might be involved.

         23  Also, I assume they still keep control, if they

         24  bring the Path trains back --

         25                 MR. FEDER: Well, there's some control
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          2  obviously with the mass transit --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

          4                 MR. FEDER: -- For the underground

          5  infrastructure, definitely. And they are planning

          6  some type of mini-run from Jersey over to that same

          7  area.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

          9                 But I mean, in talking about how they

         10  might have some kind of control.

         11                 I think the other possibility might

         12  have been for the Lower Manhattan Development

         13  Corporation, or whatever, which is essentially a

         14  state entity, and they also, one assumes they could

         15  also potentially take over the contract.

         16                 MR. FEDER: Yes, well, basically it's

         17  a very gray area just for the fact that it is at

         18  this point in time privately owned. I mean, even

         19  though it's a 99-year lease, technically speaking,

         20  it's privately owned, and it's really a gray area

         21  how we're there, you know, we're basically helping

         22  him remove all the debris --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Right.

         24                 MR. FEDER: It's a catastrophic, once

         25  in a -- hopefully a once in a lifetime, once in a
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          2  worldtime event that this will happen.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Otherwise he

          4  normally would have to remove the debris himself.

          5                 MR. FEDER: He is responsible for that

          6  site.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Right.

          8                 MR. FEDER: Lock, stock and barrel.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, it's a

         10  very interesting, tricky dilemma that we have here.

         11  Because it is probably appropriate for us to be

         12  doing what we're doing, in considering it was an act

         13  of war --

         14                 MR. FEDER: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And all of

         16  the victimization. But when you go on debris

         17  removal, I guess, and start getting into the

         18  reconstruction and development of the site, whose

         19  funds should be used? Should it be the 20 billion,

         20  or should it be the private developers? I guess the

         21  issue that you're raising.

         22                 MR. FEDER: Well, right now there is

         23  also a legal battle that Silverstein is spewing out

         24  in the courts and the courts will have to settle

         25  this. The property was insured for $3.2 billion.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: 3.2 billion?

          3                 MR. FEDER: Right. Per occurrence.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Per

          5  occurrence?

          6                 MR. FEDER: Right.

          7                 Now, he's claiming that each of the

          8  two planes were two separate occurrences, thus he's

          9  trying to seek from the insurance industry $6.4

         10  billion. The insurance industry is saying, no, this

         11  was a coordinated planned hit, and we're counting it

         12  as one occurrence.

         13                 That aspect is definitely going to

         14  end up in the courts. Whether or not he's also going

         15  to be paying for the infrastructure supporting the

         16  site where the train systems are going to be and so

         17  forth is questionable. I'm sure the Port Authority

         18  is going to be contributing that, but that's only an

         19  educated guess at this point.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Yes, sir?

         21                 MR. SOFFIN: I wonder if I could just

         22  bring up an issue here which is probably out of the

         23  purview of the Committee, but it's related?

         24                 In other words, just like we're

         25  fighting the privatization of Bechtel on the site of
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          2  Ground Zero, the Cortlandt Station of the New York

          3  City subway system has been demolished, and there is

          4  some indication that the Transit Authority wants to

          5  give the design -- redesign and reconstruction to a

          6  consulting firm, and our Local 375 is also, we have

          7  expert people at the Transit Authority. I know it's

          8  not the purview of this Committee. We have expert

          9  people at the Transit Authority who are experts in

         10  tunnel redesign, who are capable of doing this here,

         11  and we have written to the Chief Engineer of the

         12  Transit Authority, Nagaracha (phonetic) pointing out

         13  that any redesign of the Cortlandt Street station,

         14  and reconstruction and construction management

         15  should be done by the in-house people. So, it's

         16  related.

         17                 In other words, the privatization of

         18  Bechtel and the privatization at the Cortlandt

         19  Street Station, which is very adjacent to the World

         20  Trade Center site is related so we have a double

         21  problem on our hands, so-to-speak.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         23                 MR. SOFFIN: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you,

          3  gentlemen.

          4                 MR. FEDER: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Dana Lee Cohen,

          6  from Applied Ecology.

          7                 MS. COHEN: Hi. Good afternoon.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Hi. Raise your

          9  right hand.

         10                 MS. COHEN: Oh, okay.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Do you swear to

         12  tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the

         13  truth?

         14                 MS. COHEN: Yes. Yes, I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay, great.

         16                 Just state your name and position for

         17  the record, and then proceed.

         18                 MS. COHEN: Okay.

         19                 My name is Dana Lee Cohen, and I'm an

         20  acupuncturist and an environmental activist, I guess

         21  you could say.

         22                 I'm here on behalf of my friends at

         23  Ocean Arts International, an applied ecology company

         24  that handles waste treatment, cleaning brown sites,

         25  cleaning the waters of the Hudson is my particular
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          2  concern.

          3                 Before this accident occurred, a

          4  friend of mine who had a houseboat on the Hudson

          5  reported to me that he had seen a sea turtle and a

          6  dolphin in the Hudson because it was really coming

          7  back, and now we've had this trauma, and not a lot

          8  of people are discussing the problem that dioxin and

          9  heavy metals and asbestos are all pouring into the

         10  Hudson and would ultimately threaten our ocean and

         11  our bay and the ground water. And that will need to

         12  be handled, and this company can handle it in an

         13  extremely elegant and exciting way.  What they do is

         14  they use plants suspended in the water and plant

         15  roots actually will take out metals and some of

         16  these organic materials, like PCBs and dioxins, it

         17  will take them out into their own bodies and clean

         18  the water. It's a very economical and efficient

         19  method.

         20                 So, I'd like to read his note to the

         21  Council, on behalf of this company, so that they can

         22  provide an example of an alternate type of company

         23  to something like Bechtel, which probably has very

         24  little experience. This is more like giving it to a

         25  company that's related with academia, it's a
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          2  non-profit, and it knows all about and cares all

          3  about the environment.

          4                 So, he wrote to me that, it was

          5  addressed to Mr. Costelli, your assistant.

          6                 "I was alerted to today's emergency

          7  Contracts Meeting by an enthusiastic supporter of

          8  the natural water treatment technologies developed

          9  by Ocean Arts International, a 501-C3 research and

         10  education nonprofit, headquartered in Burlington,

         11  Vermont.

         12                 My understanding is that one of the

         13  topics under consideration is protection of the

         14  waters under and around Ground Zero.

         15                 We have heard reports that recent

         16  ground water contamination includes organic

         17  compounds like dioxin and PCBs, as well as heavy

         18  metals, lead in particular.

         19                 Ocean Arts International has

         20  developed an ecologically engineered floating

         21  treatment technology appropriate for the job. The

         22  facilities are called "restorers", they digest toxic

         23  organics using a complex of ecologies housed in the

         24  micro habitat of plant roots. Heavy metals can be

         25  absorbed and sequestered in living tissue, where
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          2  they can be harvested.

          3                 This technique, called "fido

          4  remediation" has been successfully used to reclaim

          5  brown field sites in climates similar to New York

          6  City.

          7                 The treatment system would be floated

          8  off the banks of the Hudson River in the areas where

          9  ground water and surface stormwaters enter the

         10  River.

         11                 From shore, the view is a simple

         12  walkway, surrounded by a floating garden. So this

         13  technology would actually have the potential to

         14  create a lovely promenade alongside the Hudson River

         15  that would potentially be able to be used to teach

         16  kids and college students about this environmental

         17  technique, as well as to be like a place that

         18  tourists might be interested in visiting, and I

         19  would think of it as a world peace center to replace

         20  the World Trade Center, a world peace garden."

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: I'm just wondering

         22  if you -- I don't know how familiar you are with the

         23  area, but there actually is on Pier 26 the River

         24  Project which was looking into doing, prior to the

         25  Trade Center disaster, obviously, and will probably
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          2  still look into doing an estuary and natural

          3  cleaning of that area.

          4                 You might want to contact them and

          5  talk to them about areas that, you know, although

          6  they are 501-C3, but areas that you might be able to

          7  help each other.

          8                 I would also suggest that you might

          9  want to send basically information to the City,

         10  either to DDC, like the person that was just here,

         11  or to -- I'm not even sure which Department of the

         12  City, probably DDC or OEM, or DET, to see if they'd

         13  be interested in, you know, potentially a contract,

         14  or the information that you have. Because since

         15  they're still working on this emergency basis, they

         16  are just decided who they want to hire, so they

         17  would probably be the proper place to make a

         18  submission to see if they would be interested in

         19  using your group.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Are there any

         21  former cabinet members on the boards of the

         22  organizations that you're involved with?

         23                 MR. COHEN: No. No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: No? There are

         25  no former cabinet -- are there any former friends or
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          2  associates of cabinet members on your board?

          3                 MR. COHEN: Well, actually, I couldn't

          4  testify to that, because I'm just someone who has

          5  visited their greenhouse, where they used to treat

          6  wastewater from people's homes and gardens.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Oh. You're

          8  not stonewalling me, like the guy from DDC?

          9                 MR. COHEN: I think they're really a

         10  bunch of very smart hippies.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         12  very much for your testimony, I really appreciate

         13  it.

         14                 MS. COHEN: You're welcome.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you. And

         16  thank you for being patient.

         17                 MS. COHEN: You're welcome. My

         18  pleasure. Thank you for the opportunity to speak

         19  here.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FREED: Great.

         21                 And unless there are any more

         22  witnesses, this hearing is adjourned.

         23                 (Hearing concluded at 2:20 p.m.)

         24

         25
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